
CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, January 26, 2016    City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.          16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Announcement of Volunteer of the Year and Commissioner of the Year (Council)

RECEPTION 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  January 12, 2016 Special Meeting-Joint Study Session with Planning Commission (Scott)
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)
C-3. Accept 2016 King County Youth Sports Facilities Grant (Feser)
C-4. Accept Department of Ecology 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Program Grant (Vondran)
C-5. Approve Ordinance Adopting Standards for Public Defense Services (Springer)
C-6. Approve Cordi & Bejarano, Inc., P.S. Agreement for Indigent Defense Services (Bolli)
C-7. Authorize Vehicle Purchase for Parks Maintenance (Vondran/Junkin)

REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  January 14 meeting; December 10 meeting canceled.
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  December 16 and January 20 meetings.
• Planning Chair Bill Judd:  December 17 meeting; Dec. 3, Jan. 7, and Jan. 21 meetings canceled.
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  December 10 and January 14 meetings.
• PRePAC Chair Jennifer Harjehausen:  December 9 special meeting.
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  December 3 special meeting.

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Ordinance to Amend Use, Storage, Setback, Screening and Permitting Requirements for

Recreational Vehicles (Hart)

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

• To Discuss Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i). 
• To Review the Performance of a Public Employee Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g). 

 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 

 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  January 26, 2016  

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JANUARY 12, 2016 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 
MEETING – JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH PLANNING COMMISSION 
MINUTES 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

EXPLANATION:  

ALTERNATIVES:  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the January 12, 2016 City Council Special 
Meeting – Joint Study Session with Planning Commission Minutes. 

1 of 119



Unapproved Draft – January 12, 2016 Special Meeting - Joint Study Session with Planning Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  January 26, 2016  
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Meeting 

Joint Study Session with Planning Commission Minutes 
Tuesday, January 12, 2016 

 
The Special Meeting Joint Study Session with the Planning Commission was called to order in the 
City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
January 12, 2016, at 5:50 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Krista Bates, Chele Dimmett, Jennifer Gilbert-Smith, Bill Judd, Jim Langehough, Paul Max, and 
Alex White.  
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Salina Lyons, Principal 
Planner; Ann Mueller, Senior Planner; Rachel Bahl, Interim Parks & Recreation Director; and Sharon 
Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
OATH OF OFFICE TO NEWLY ELECTED COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant Sharon Scott performed the Oath of Office to Marlla Mhoon 
(Position No. 1, Margaret Harto (Position No. 3), Sean Smith (Position No. 5), and Jeff Wagner 
(Position No. 7). 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the special meeting joint study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott second to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Planning Commission 2016 Work Plan. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff presentation on this item. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the prioritization of the 2016 Work Program items and the reasons 
associated with the current ranking of the Work Program list provided. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

2 of 119



Unapproved Draft – January 12, 2016 Special Meeting - Joint Study Session with Planning Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  January 26, 2016  
 
 

2 
 

Patricia Akiyama, representing Master Builders Association of King and Snohomish 
Counties, spoke regarding Work Program Item 12, Study Reducing Residential Side Yard 
Setbacks from 7.5 feet to 5.0, and requested Council to include this item on the 2016 Planning 
Commission and Staff Work Plan. 
 
Colin Lund, Oakpointe, also spoke in favor of including the reduction in side yard setbacks on 
the 2016 Work Plan. 
 
Steve Pand, Parks & Recreation Commission, spoke regarding Work Program Item 13, Park 
Impact Fee Code Changes, and expressed his disappointment that this item was so far down the 
list. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, Covington resident, spoke regarding Work Program Item 12, Study Reducing 
Residential Side Yard Setbacks from 7.5 feet to 5.0, and requested considerations to established 
neighborhoods that were built with five foot setbacks, with irregular shaped lots, and no safety 
factors involved to provide flexibility for improvements on those existing homes. 
 
Captain Larry Rabel, Kent Fire Regional Fire Authority, also spoke regarding Work Program 
Item 12, and stated that the Regional Fire Authority was willing to listen to well thought out plans 
regarding any changes to side yard setbacks. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Hart closed the public comment period. 
 
Summary discussion was held regarding the many considerations that go into housing density and 
setbacks. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:47 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

3 of 119



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 26, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers:  Vouchers #33514-33570, including ACH payments in the 
amount of $309,999.83, dated January 8, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004756867-
1004756872 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004756876-1004756876 inclusive, plus employee 
direct deposits in the amount of $165,289.74, dated January 15, 2016. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #33514-33570, including ACH 
payments in the amount of $309,999.83, dated January 8, 2016; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004756867-1004756872 and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1004756876-1004756876 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in 
the amount of $165,289.74, dated January 15, 2016. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 

4 of 119



5 of 119



6 of 119



7 of 119



8 of 119



9 of 119



10 of 119



11 of 119



12 of 119



13 of 119



14 of 119



15 of 119



16 of 119



17 of 119



18 of 119



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 26, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  KING COUNTY YOUTH SPORTS FACILITY GRANT APPROVAL 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Contract and Attached Exhibits 
 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner  
 
EXPLANATION: 
This grant is for the Gerry Crick Skate Park renovation project which is the replacement of failing 
skate park ramps and equipment. The project’s budget is estimated at $120,000 with funding from 
several sources including $60,000 from General Fund, $21,500 Parks Fee-In-Lieu, $7,500 donated 
labor (community-build installation) and $1,000 donation from partnership with MultiCare 
Covington Hospital. The remaining $30,000 is provided by this King County Youth Sports 
Facilities Grant.  
 
This renovation of equipment will allow for the skate park to remain open, create a partnership 
with MultiCare Covington Hospital and provide an opportunity for a community-built project 
allowing the public to be involved with the renovation design and installation of a youth recreation 
facility. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: (include consequences and staff recommendation) 

1. Not approve the grant and decrease the project budget by $30,000. 
2. Not approve the grant, not complete the project and make arrangements to eventually 

close the skate park. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
As described above, this is a $120,000 project with various funding sources including General 
Fund and Parks Fee-in-Lieu from city funds. Donations of community labor and from MultiCare 
Covington Hospital combined with this grant supply the balance of the funds necessary for the 
project.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution      X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to accept the 2016 King County 
Youth Sports Facilities grant in the amount of $30,000 and execute the grant 
contract in substantial form as that attached hereto.  
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director, and Interim Parks & 
Recreation Director 

19 of 119



ATTACHMENT 1

20 of 119



21 of 119



22 of 119



23 of 119



24 of 119



25 of 119



26 of 119



27 of 119



28 of 119



29 of 119



30 of 119



31 of 119



32 of 119



33 of 119



34 of 119



35 of 119



36 of 119



37 of 119



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  January 26, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 
AND THE CITY OF COVINGTON FOR THE 2015-17 BIENNIAL 
STORMWATER CAPACITY GRANTS PROGRAM. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1.  Grant Agreement Number WQSWCAP-1517-COVING-00050 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ben Parrish, SWM Program Coordinator 
 
EXPLANATION:  
Staff requests council authorization for the city manager to execute a grant agreement with the 
State of Washington Department of Ecology (Attachment 1) to aid the implementation of the 
city’s Phase II National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit.  The grant 
consists of $50,000 to offset costs incurred from the implementation and management of our 
stormwater program  
  
ALTERNATIVES:   
Decline the DOE grant of $50,000 to offset some of the financial impacts associated with the 
implementation of the Phase II NPDES Permit and design storm system retrofits. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Surface Water Management Fund will receive reimbursement for up to $50,000 to aid in 
offsetting the implementation of the Phase II NPDES Permit requirements.   
 
There are no match requirements for this grant. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember ____________moves, Councilmember ____________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a grant agreement 
between the State of Washington Department of Ecology and the City of 
Covington for the 2015-17 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants Program, 
in substantial form as that attached hereto. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

38 of 119



Page 1 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

Agreement WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

WATER QUALITY STORMWATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

AND

City of Covington

This is a binding Agreement entered into by and between the State of Washington, Department of Ecology, 

hereinafter referred to as “ECOLOGY” and City of Covington, hereinafter referred to as the "RECIPIENT" to carry 

out with the provided funds activities described herein.

2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

GENERAL INFORMATION

Project Title:

Total Cost: $50,000.00

Total Eligible Cost: $50,000.00

Ecology Share: $50,000.00

Recipient Share: $0.00

The Effective Date of this Agreement is: 07/01/2015

The Expiration Date of this Agreement is no later than 03/31/2017

Project Type: Capacity Grant

Project Short Description:

  This project will assist Phase I and II Permittes in implementation or management of municipal stormwater 

programs.

Project Long Description:

  N/A

Overall Goal:

  This project will improve water quality in the State of Washington by reducing stormwater pollutants discharged to 

state water bodies.

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

ATTACHMENT 1

39 of 119



Page 2 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

RECIPIENT INFORMATION

Organization Name: City of Covington

Federal Tax ID: 91-1829887

DUNS Number:       185301301

Mailing Address:       16720 SE 271st ST #100

Covington, Washington, 98042

Physical Address:       16720 SE 271st ST  #100

Covington, Washington, 98042

Contacts

Project Manager Ben Parrish

SWM Program Coordinator

16720 SE 271st ST, Suite 100

Covington, Washington, 98042

Email:  bparrish@covingtonwa.gov

Phone:  (253) 480-2465

Billing Contact

Authorized 

Signatory

Lindsay Hagen

Accountant

16720 SE 271st Street, #100

Covington, Washington, 98042

Email:  lhagen@covingtonwa.gov

Phone:  (253) 480-2422

Regan H Bolli

City Manager

16720 SE 271st Street, Ste 100

Covington, Washington, 98042

Email:  rbolli@covingtonwa.gov

Phone:  (253) 480-2400

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 40 of 119



Page 3 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

ECOLOGY INFORMATION

Mailing Address:       Department of Ecology

      Water Quality

PO BOX 47600

Olympia, WA 98504-7600

Physical Address:       Water Quality

300 Desmond Drive

Lacey, WA 98503

Contacts

  Project 

  Manager

  Financial

  Manager

Kyle Graunke

P.O. Box 47600

Olympia, Washington, 98504-7600

Email:  kygr461@ecy.wa.gov

Phone:  (360) 407-6452

Kyle Graunke

P.O. Box 47600

Olympia, Washington, 98504-7600

Email:  kygr461@ecy.wa.gov

Phone:  (360) 407-6452

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 41 of 119



Page 4 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

RECIPIENT agrees to furnish the necessary personnel, equipment, materials, services, and otherwise do all things 

necessary for or incidental to the performance of work as set forth in the Scope of Work.

RECIPIENT agrees to read, understand, and accept all information contained within this entire Agreement.  

Furthermore, RECIPIENT acknowledges that they have reviewed the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Scope 

of Work, attachments, all incorporated or referenced documents, as well as all applicable laws, statutes, rules, 

regulations, and guidelines mentioned in this Agreement.

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties, and there are no other understandings or 

representations other than as set forth, or incorporated by reference, herein.  

This Agreement shall be subject to the written approval of Ecology’s authorized representative and shall not be 

binding until so approved. 

The signatories to this Agreement represent that they have the authority to execute this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby sign this Agreement

Washington State

Department of Ecology

Water Quality

Program Manager Date Date

City of Covington

Heather Bartlett
City Manager

Regan H Bolli

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 42 of 119



Page 5 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 1 Task Cost: $0.00

Task Title: Project Administration/Management

Task Description:

 A. The RECIPIENT shall carry out all work necessary to meet ECOLOGY grant or loan administration requirements. 

Responsibilities include, but are not  limited to:  maintenance of project records; submittal of requests for 

reimbursement and corresponding backup documentation; progress reports; and a recipient  closeout report (including 

photos).    

 

B. The RECIPIENT shall maintain documentation demonstrating compliance with applicable procurement, 

contracting, and interlocal agreement requirements; application for, receipt of, and compliance with all required 

permits, licenses, easements, or property rights necessary for the project; and submittal of required performance items.

C. The RECIPIENT shall manage the project.  Efforts include, but are not limited to:  conducting, coordinating, and 

scheduling project activities and assuring quality control.  Every effort will be made to maintain effective 

communication with the RECIPIENT's designees; ECOLOGY; all affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions; and any 

interested individuals or groups.  The RECIPIENT shall carry out this project in accordance with any completion dates 

outlined in this agreement.

Task Goal Statement:

 Properly managed and fully documented project that meets ECOLOGY’s grant or loan administrative requirements.

Task Expected Outcome:

 * Timely and complete submittal of requests for reimbursement, quarterly progress reports, and RECIPIENT closeout 

report.

* Properly maintained project documentation

Deliverables

Project Administration/Management

Number Description Due Date

1.1 Quarterly Progress Reports

1.2 Recipient Closeout Report

1.3 Project Outcome Summary Report

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 43 of 119



Page 6 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 2 Task Cost: $50,000.00

Task Title: Project Administration/Management

Task Description:

 Conduct work related to implementation of municipal stormwater National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

(NPDES) permit requirements.  If the RECIPIENT is out of compliance with the municipal stormwater National 

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit, the RECIPIENT will ensure funds are used to attain 

compliance where applicable.

RECIPIENT may conduct work related to implementation of additional activities required by the municipal stormwater 

NPDES permits.  The following is a list of elements RECIPIENT’s project may include. 

1) Public education and outreach activities, including stewardship activities.

2) Public involvement and participation activities.

3) Illicit discharge detection and elimination (IDDE) program activities, including:

     a) Mapping or geographic information systems of municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s).

     b) Staff training. 

     c) Activities to identify and remove illicit stormwater discharges.

     d) Field screening procedures.

     e) Complaint hotline database or tracking system improvements.

4) Activities to support programs to control runoff from new development, redevelopment,  and construction sites, 

including:

     a) Development of an ordinance and associated technical manual or update of applicable codes.

     b) Inspections before, during, and upon completion of construction, or for post-construction long-term maintenance.

     c) Training for plan review and/or inspection staff.

     d) Participation in applicable watershed planning effort. 

5) Pollution prevention, good housekeeping, and operation and maintenance program activities, such as:

     a) Inspecting and/or maintaining the MS4 infrastructure.

     b) Developing and/or implementing policies, procedures, or stormwater pollution prevention plans at municipal 

properties or facilities.

6) Annual reporting activities.

7) Establishing and refining stormwater utilities, including stable rate structures. 

8) Water quality monitoring to implement permit requirements for a Water Cleanup Plan (TMDL). Note that any 

monitoring funded by this program requires submittal of a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) that the 

DEPARMENT approves prior to awarding funding for monitoring.  

 Monitoring, including: 

     a) Development of applicable QAPPs.

     b) Monitoring activities, in accordance with a DEPARTMENT- approved QAPP, to meet Phase I/II permit 

requirements.  

9) Structural stormwater controls program activities (Phase I permit requirement)

10) Source control for existing development (Phase I permit requirement), including:

     a) Inventory and inspection program.

     b) Technical assistance and enforcement.

     c) Staff training.

11) Equipment purchases that result directly in improved compliance with permit requirements. Allowed costs for 

equipment purchases must be specific to implementing a permit requirement (such as a vactor truck) rather than 

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 44 of 119



Page 7 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

general use (such as a general use pick-up truck). Qualified equipment purchases include but are not limited to:

     a) Illicit discharge testing equipment and materials.

     b) Vactor truck or sweeper truck or MS4 maintenance activities.

     c) Electronic devices dedicated to mapping of MS4 facilities and attributes.

     d) Software dedicated to tracking permit implementation activities.

As a deliverable, documentation of all tasks completed is required.  Documentation includes but is not limited to: 

maps, field reports, dates and number of inspections conducted, dates of trainings held and participant lists, number of 

illicit discharges investigated and removed, summaries of planning, stormwater utility or procedural updates, annual 

reports, copies of approved QAPPs, summaries of structural or source control activities, summaries of how equipment 

purchases have increased or improved permit compliance.

Task Goal Statement:

 This task will improve water quality in the State of Washington by reducing the pollutants delivered by stormwater to 

lakes, streams, and the Puget Sound by implementing measures required by Phase I and II NPDES permits.

Task Expected Outcome:

 RECIPIENTS will implement measures required by Phase I and II NPDES permits.

Deliverables

Project Administration/Management

Number Description Due Date

2.1 Documentation of tasks completed

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 45 of 119



Page 8 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

BUDGET

Funding Distribution EG160338

Funding Title: Capacity Grant FY16

Funding Type: Grant

Funding Effective Date: 07/01/2015

Funding Source: 

          Title:     ELSA: Environmental Legacy Stewardship Account

          Type:    State

          CFDA:  

         Assistance Agreement:  

         Description:

           

MTCA

Recipient Match %:  0

InKind Interlocal Allowed: No

InKind Other Allowed: No

Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant?   No

Funding Expiration Date: 03/31/2017

Capacity Grant FY16 Task Total

Permit Implementation 25,000.00$

25,000.00$Total:  

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 46 of 119



Page 9 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

BUDGET

Funding Distribution EG160339

Funding Title: Capacity Grant FY17

Funding Type: Grant

Funding Effective Date: 07/01/2016

Funding Source: 

          Title:     ELSA: Environmental Legacy Stewardship Account

          Type:    State

          CFDA:  

         Assistance Agreement:  

         Description:

           

MTCA

Recipient Match %:  0

InKind Interlocal Allowed: No

InKind Other Allowed: No

Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant?   No

Funding Expiration Date: 03/31/2017

Capacity Grant FY17 Task Total

Permit Implementation 25,000.00$

25,000.00$Total:  

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 47 of 119



Page 10 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

Funding Distribution Summary

Recipient / Ecology Share

Recipient Share Ecology Share TotalRecipient Match %Funding Distribution Name

$ $ $% 25,000.00 25,000.000.000.00Capacity Grant FY16

$ $ $% 25,000.00 25,000.000.000.00Capacity Grant FY17

Total $ $0.00 50,000.00 $ 50,000.00

AGREEMENT SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

N/A

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SECTION 1:  DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise provided, the following terms will have the respective meanings for all purposes of this agreement:

“Administration Charge” means a charge established in accordance with Chapter 90.50A RCW and Chapter 173-98 

WAC, to be used to pay Ecology’s cost to administer the State Revolving Fund by placing a percentage of the interest 

earned in an Administrative Charge Account.  

“Administrative Requirements” means the effective edition of ECOLOGY's ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

FOR RECIPIENTS OF ECOLOGY GRANTS AND LOANS at the signing of this agreement.

“Annual Debt Service” for any calendar year means for any applicable bonds or loans including the loan, all interest 

plus all principal due on such bonds or loans in such year.

“Average Annual Debt Service” means, at the time of calculation, the sum of the Annual Debt Service for the 

remaining years of the loan to the last scheduled maturity of the loan divided by the number of those years.

“Centennial Clean Water Program” means the state program funded from various state sources.

“Contract Documents” means the contract between the RECIPIENT and the construction contractor for construction of 

the project.

“Cost Effective Analysis” means a comparison of the relative cost-efficiencies of two or more potential ways of solving 

a water quality problem as described in Chapter 173-98-730 WAC.

“Defease” or “Defeasance” means the setting aside in escrow or other special fund or account of sufficient investments 

and money dedicated to pay all principal of and interest on all or a portion of an obligation as it comes due.

“Effective Date” means the earliest date on which eligible costs may be incurred.

“Effective Interest Rate” means the total interest rate established by Ecology that includes the Administrative Charge. 

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 48 of 119



Page 11 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

“Estimated Loan Amount” means the initial amount of funds loaned to the RECIPIENT.

“Estimated Loan Repayment Schedule” means the schedule of loan repayments over the term of the loan based on the 

Estimated Loan Amount.

“Equivalency” means projects designated by ECOLOGY to meet additional federal requirements.  

“Final Accrued Interest” means the interest accrued beginning with the first disbursement of funds to the RECIPIENT 

through such time as the loan is officially closed out and a final loan repayment schedule is issued.

“Final Loan Amount” means all principal of and interest on the loan from the Project Start Date through the Project 

Completion Date.

“Final Loan Repayment Schedule” means the schedule of loan repayments over the term of the loan based on the Final 

Loan Amount.

“Forgivable Principal” means the portion of a loan that is not required to be paid back by the borrower.

“General Obligation Debt” means an obligation of the RECIPIENT secured by annual ad valorem taxes levied by the 

RECIPIENT and by the full faith, credit, and resources of the RECIPIENT.

“General Obligation Payable from Special Assessments Debt” means an obligation of the RECIPIENT secured by a 

valid general obligation of the Recipient payable from special assessments to be imposed within the constitutional and 

statutory tax limitations provided by law without a vote of the electors of the RECIPIENT on all of the taxable property 

within the boundaries of the RECIPIENT.

“Gross Revenue” means all of the earnings and revenues received by the RECIPIENT from the maintenance and 

operation of the Utility and all earnings from the investment of money on deposit in the Loan Fund, except (i) Utility 

Local Improvement Districts (ULID) Assessments, (ii) government grants, (iii) RECIPIENT taxes, (iv) principal 

proceeds of bonds and other obligations, or (v) earnings or proceeds (A) from any investments in a trust, Defeasance, or 

escrow fund created to Defease or refund Utility obligations or (B) in an obligation redemption fund or account other 

than the Loan Fund until commingled with other earnings and revenues of the Utility or (C) held in a special account 

for the purpose of paying a rebate to the United States Government under the Internal Revenue Code.

“Guidelines” means the ECOLOGY's Funding Guidelines that that correlate to the State Fiscal Year in which the 

project is funded. 

“Initiation of Operation Date” means the actual date the Water Pollution Control Facility financed with proceeds of the 

loan begins to operate for its intended purpose.  

“Loan” means the Washington State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Loan or Centennial Clean Water Fund 

(Centennial) Loan made pursuant to this loan agreement.

“Loan Amount” means either an Estimated Loan Amount or a Final Loan Amount, as applicable.

“Loan Fund” means the special fund of that name created by ordinance or resolution of the RECIPIENT for the 

repayment of the principal of and interest on the loan.

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 49 of 119



Page 12 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

“Loan Security” means the mechanism by which the RECIPIENT pledges to repay the loan.

“Loan Term” means the repayment period of the loan.

“Maintenance and Operation Expense” means all reasonable expenses incurred by the RECIPIENT in causing the 

Utility to be operated and maintained in good repair, working order, and condition including payments to other parties, 

but will not include any depreciation or RECIPIENT levied taxes or payments to the RECIPIENT in lieu of taxes.

“Net Revenue” means the Gross Revenue less the Maintenance and Operation Expense.

“Original Engineer’s Estimate” means the engineer’s estimate of construction costs included with bid documents.

“Principal and Interest Account” means, for a loan that constitutes Revenue-Secured Debt, the account of that name 

created in the loan fund to be first used to repay the principal of and interest on the loan.

“Project” means the project described in this agreement.

“Project Completion Date” means the date specified in the agreement on which the Scope of Work will be fully 

completed.

“Project Schedule” means that schedule for the project specified in the agreement.

“Reserve Account” means, for a loan that constitutes Revenue-Secured Debt, the account of that name created in the 

loan fund to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the loan.

“Revenue-Secured Debt” means an obligation of the RECIPIENT secured by a pledge of the revenue of a utility and 

one not a general obligation of the RECIPIENT.

“Risk-Based Determination” means an approach to sub-recipient monitoring and oversight based on risk factors 

associated to a RECIPIENT or project.

“Scope of Work” means the tasks and activities constituting the project.

“Section 319” means the section of the Clean Water Act that provides funding to address nonpoint sources of water 

pollution.

“Senior Lien Obligations” means all revenue bonds and other obligations of the RECIPIENT outstanding on the date of 

execution of this loan agreement (or subsequently issued on a parity therewith, including refunding obligations) or 

issued after the date of execution of this loan agreement having a claim or lien on the Gross Revenue of the Utility prior 

and superior to the claim or lien of the loan, subject only to Maintenance and Operation Expense.

“State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (Revolving Fund)” means the water pollution control revolving fund 

established by Chapter 90.50A.020 RCW.

“Termination Date” means the effective date of ECOLOGY’s termination of the agreement.

“Termination Payment Date” means the date on which the RECIPIENT is required to repay to ECOLOGY any 

outstanding balance of the loan and all accrued interest.

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 50 of 119



Page 13 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

“Total Eligible Project Cost” means the sum of all costs associated with a water quality project that have been 

determined to be eligible for ECOLOGY grant or loan funding.

“Total Project Cost” means the sum of all costs associated with a water quality project, including costs that are not 

eligible for ECOLOGY grant or loan funding.

“ULID” means any utility local improvement district of the RECIPIENT created for the acquisition or construction of 

additions to and extensions and betterments of the Utility.

“ULID Assessments” means all assessments levied and collected in any ULID.  Such assessments are pledged to be 

paid into the Loan Fund (less any prepaid assessments permitted by law to be paid into a construction fund or account).  

ULID Assessments will include principal installments and any interest or penalties which may be due.

“Utility” means the sewer system, stormwater system, or the combined water and sewer system of the RECIPIENT, the 

Net Revenue of which is pledged to pay and secure the loan.

SECTION 2:  THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS APPLY TO ALL RECIPIENTS OF WATER QUALITY FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE FUNDING.

The Water Quality Financial Assistance Funding Guidelines are included in this agreement by reference.

A. Architectural and Engineering Services:  The RECIPIENT certifies by signing this agreement that the requirements 

of Chapter 39.80 RCW, “Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services,” have been, or shall be, met in 

procuring qualified architectural/engineering services.  The RECIPIENT shall identify and separate eligible and 

ineligible costs in the final negotiated agreement and submit a copy of the agreement to ECOLOGY.

B. Best Management Practices (BMP) Implementation:  If the RECIPIENT installs BMPs that are not approved by 

ECOLOGY prior to installation, the RECIPIENT assumes the risk that part or all of the reimbursement for that activity 

may be delayed or ineligible.  For more details regarding BMP Implementation, please reference the Water Quality 

Financial Assistance Funding Guidelines available on ECOLOGY’s Water Quality Program funding website.

C. Cultural and Historic Resources Protection Compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations.  The 

RECIPIENT shall:

1) The RECIPIENT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local environmental laws, statutes, regulations, 

executive orders, and permits. 

2) The RECIPIENT shall comply with Ecology’s Archaeological Resource and Historic Property review process. The 

RECIPIENT agrees that in no case shall construction activities, ground disturbance, or excavation of any kind, begin 

until provisions of this process are complied with. The RECIPIENT is responsible for developing a complete 

Inadvertent Discovery Plan (IDP). The IDP must be immediately available by request by any party. An IDP must be 

immediately available and be implemented to address any discovery. The RECIPIENT will implement the procedures 

in the IDP, and immediately notify ECOLOGY, the Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP), and 

tribal representatives if human remains, cultural, or archeological resources are discovered in the course of construction.  

For more details regarding requirements under this provision, please reference the Water Quality Financial Assistance 

Funding Guidelines available on ECOLOGY’s Water Quality Program funding website.

D. Electronic Fund Transfers:  The RECIPIENT must register as a statewide vendor in order to receive payment 

reimbursement. Washington State’s Department of Enterprise Services (DES) issues all payments. DES maintains a 

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 51 of 119



Page 14 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

central vendor file for Washington State agency use to process vendor payments. The RECIPIENT can complete the 

registration process online at http://des.wa.gov/services/ContractingPurchasing/Business/VendorPay/Pages/default.aspx. 

This registration process also allows The RECIPIENT to sign up for direct deposit payments, also known as electronic 

fund transfers (EFT).   If The RECIPIENT have questions about the vendor registration process or setting up direct 

deposit payments contact DES at the Payee Help Desk at (360) 664-7779 or payeehelpdesk@des.wa.gov. 

E. Equipment Purchase:  Equipment not included in the scope of work or a construction plan and specification approval 

must be pre-approved by ECOLOGY’s project manager before purchase.

F. Funding Recognition:  The RECIPIENT must inform the public about ECOLOGY or any EPA (see Section 3 for 

Section 319 funded projects or 7 for SRF funded projects) funding participation in this project through the use of 

project signs, acknowledgement in published materials, reports, the news media, websites, or other public 

announcements.  Projects addressing site-specific locations must utilize appropriately sized and weather-resistant signs.  

Sign logos are available from ECOLOGY’s Financial Manager upon request. 

G. Growth Management Planning: The RECIPIENT certifies by signing this agreement that it is in compliance with the 

requirements of Chapter 36.70A RCW, “Growth Management Planning by Selected Counties and Cities.”  If the status 

of compliance changes, either through RECIPIENT or legislative action, the RECIPIENT shall notify ECOLOGY in 

writing of this change within 30 days.

H. Interlocal: The RECIPIENT certifies by signing this agreement that all negotiated interlocal agreements necessary 

for the project are, or shall be, consistent with the terms of this agreement and Chapter 39.34 RCW, “Interlocal 

Cooperation Act.”  The RECIPIENT shall submit a copy of each interlocal agreement necessary for the project to 

ECOLOGY.

I. Lobbying and Litigation:  Costs incurred for the purposes of lobbying or litigation are not eligible for funding under 

this agreement.

J. Post Project Assessment Survey: The RECIPIENT agrees to participate in a brief survey regarding the key project 

results or water quality project outcomes and the status of long-term environmental results or goals from the project 

approximately three years after project completion.  A representative from ECOLOGY’s Water Quality Program may 

contact the RECIPIENT to request this data.  ECOLOGY may also conduct site interviews and inspections, and may 

otherwise evaluate the project, as part of this assessment.

K. Project Status Evaluation: ECOLOGY may evaluate the status of this project 18 months from the effective date of 

this agreement. ECOLOGY’s Project Manager and Financial Manager will meet with the RECIPIENT to review 

spending trends, completion of outcome measures, and overall project administration and performance.  If the 

RECIPIENT fails to make satisfactory progress toward achieving project outcomes, ECOLOGY may change the scope 

of work, reduce grant funds, or increase oversight measures.

L. Technical Assistance: Technical assistance for agriculture activities provided under the terms of this agreement will 

be consistent with the current U.S. Natural Resource Conservation Service (“NRCS”) Field Office Technical Guide for 

Washington State.  However, ECOLOGY may accept as eligible technical assistance, proposed practices, or project 

designs that do not meet these standards if approved in writing by the NRCS and ECOLOGY.

SECTION 3:  THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS APPLY TO ALL RECIPIENTS OF SFY15-17 CAPACITY 

GRANTS

ECOLOGY shall reimburse eligible project expenses following the schedule below. 

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 52 of 119



Page 15 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

Prior to July 1, 2016: Total reimbursements to the RECIPIENT for eligible project expenses are limited to a maximum 

$25,000.

After July 1, 2016:  If funding is available, ECOLOGY will provide written notification via email to the RECIPIENT 

project manager stating that ECOLOGY may reimburse additional eligible expenses up to the total project eligible cost 

of $50,000.  Eligible project expenses may be incurred at any time between July 1, 2015 and March 31, 2017.  If 

additional funds are not available, total reimbursements for eligible project expenses will be limited to a maximum of 

$25,000.

If the RECIPENT fails to submit two or more consecutive quarterly reports via the EAGL grant management system, 

ECOLOGY may consider this failure to provide progress reports as non-performance and initiate actions to amend or 

terminate this agreement.

 GENERAL FEDERAL CONDITIONS

If a portion or all of the funds for this agreement are provided through federal funding sources or this 

agreement is used to match a federal grant award, the following terms and conditions apply to you.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING SUSPENSION, DEBARMENT, INELIGIBILITY OR VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION:

1. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR, by signing this agreement, certifies that it is not suspended, debarred, 

proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from contracting with the federal 

government, or from receiving contracts paid for with federal funds. If the RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR is 

unable to certify to the statements contained in the certification, they must provide an explanation as to why they 

cannot. 

2. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR shall provide immediate written notice to ECOLOGY if at any time the 

RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or had become 

erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, participant, 

person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have 

the meaning set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. 

You may contact the department for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.. 

4. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR agrees it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction 

with a person who is proposed for debarment under the applicable Code of Federal Regulations, debarred, 

suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction. 

5. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR further agrees by signing this agreement, that it will include this clause titled 

“CERTIFICATION REGARDING SUSPENSION, DEBARMENT, INELIGIBILITY OR VOLUNTARY 

EXCLUSION” without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier 

covered transactions.

6. Pursuant to 2CFR180.330, the RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring that any lower tier 

covered transaction complies with certification of suspension and debarment requirements. 

7. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR acknowledges that failing to disclose the information required in the Code of 

Federal Regulations may result in the delay or negation of this funding agreement, or pursuance of legal 

remedies, including suspension and debarment.

8. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR agrees to keep proof in its agreement file, that it, and all lower tier recipients or 

contractors, are not suspended or debarred, and will make this proof available to ECOLOGY before requests for 

reimbursements will be approved for payment. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR must run a search in 

<http://www.sam.gov> and print a copy of completed searches to document proof of compliance.

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 53 of 119



Page 16 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

Federal Funding Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Reporting Requirements:

RECIPIENT must complete the FFATA Data Collection Form (ECY 070-395) and return it with the signed 

agreement to ECOLOGY.

Any RECIPIENT that meets each of the criteria below must also report compensation for its five top executives, 

using FFATA Data Collection Form.

· Receives more than $25,000 in federal funds under this award; and

· Receives more than 80 percent of its annual gross revenues from federal funds; and

· Receives more than $25,000,000 in annual federal funds 

ECOLOGY will not pay any invoice until it has received a completed and signed FFATA Data Collection Form.  

ECOLOGY is required to report the FFATA information for federally funded agreements, including the required 

DUNS number, at www.fsrs.gov <http://www.fsrs.gov> within 30 days of agreement signature.  The FFATA 

information will be available to the public at www.usaspending.gov <http://www.usaspending.gov>.

For more details on FFATA requirements, see www.fsrs.gov <http://www.fsrs.gov>.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

a) RECIPIENT shall follow the "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants and Loans – EAGL 

Edition".  https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/SummaryPages/1401002.html

b) RECIPIENT shall complete all activities funded by this Agreement and be fully responsible for the proper 

management of all funds and resources made available under this Agreement.

c) RECIPIENT agrees to take complete responsibility for all actions taken under this Agreement, including ensuring 

all subgrantees and contractors comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. ECOLOGY reserves the right 

to request proof of compliance by subgrantees and contractors. 

d) RECIPIENT’s activities under this Agreement shall be subject to the review and approval by ECOLOGY for the 

extent and character of all work and services.

2. AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS

This Agreement may be altered, amended, or waived only by a written amendment executed by both parties.  No 

subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) of this Agreement will be of any force or effect unless in writing and 

signed by authorized representatives of both parties.  ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT may change their respective staff 

contacts and administrative information without the concurrence of either party.

3. ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

RECIPIENT shall take reasonable action to avoid, minimize, or mitigate adverse effects to archeological or cultural 

resources.  Activities associated with archaeological and cultural resources are an eligible reimbursable cost subject to 

approval by ECOLOGY.

RECIPIENT shall:

a) Immediately cease work and notify ECOLOGY if any archeological or cultural resources are found while 

conducting work under this Agreement. 

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 54 of 119



Page 17 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

b) Immediately notify the Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation at (360) 586-3064, in the event 

historical or cultural artifacts are discovered at a work site. 

c) Comply with Governor Executive Order 05-05, Archaeology and Cultural Resources, for any capital construction 

projects prior to the start of any work. 

d) Comply with RCW 27.53, Archaeological Sites and Resources, for any work performed under this Agreement, as 

applicable.  National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) may require the RECIPIENT to obtain a permit pursuant to 

Chapter 27.53 RCW prior to conducting on-site activity with the potential to impact cultural or historic properties.

4. ASSIGNMENT

No right or claim of the RECIPIENT arising under this Agreement shall be transferred or assigned by the RECIPIENT.

5. COMMUNICATION

RECIPIENT shall make every effort to maintain effective communications with the RECIPIENT's designees, 

ECOLOGY, all affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions, and any interested individuals or groups.

6. COMPENSATION

a) Any work performed prior to effective date of this Agreement will be at the sole expense and risk of the 

RECIPIENT.  ECOLOGY must sign the Agreement before any  payment requests can be submitted. 

b) Payments will be made on a reimbursable basis for approved and completed work as specified in this Agreement. 

c) RECIPIENT is responsible to determine if costs are eligible.  Any questions regarding eligibility should be clarified 

with ECOLOGY prior to incurring costs.  Costs that are conditionally eligible may require approval by ECOLOGY 

prior to purchase. 

d) RECIPIENT shall not invoice more than once per month unless agreed on by ECOLOGY.

e) ECOLOGY will not process payment requests without the proper reimbursement forms, Progress Report and 

supporting documentation.  ECOLOGY will provide instructions for submitting payment requests. 

f) ECOLOGY will pay the RECIPIENT thirty (30) days after receipt of a properly completed request for payment. 

g) RECIPIENT will receive payment through Washington State Department of Enterprise Services’ Statewide Payee 

Desk.  RECIPIENT must register as a payee by submitting a Statewide Payee Registration form and an IRS W-9 form at 

the website, http://www.des.wa.gov/services/ContractingPurchasing/Business/VendorPay/Pages/default.aspx.  For any 

questions about the vendor registration process contact the Statewide Payee Help Desk at (360) 407-8180 or email 

payeehelpdesk@des.wa.gov. 

h) ECOLOGY may, at its sole discretion, withhold payments claimed by the RECIPIENT if the RECIPIENT fails to 

satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of this Agreement.

i) Monies withheld by ECOLOGY may be paid to the RECIPIENT when the work described herein, or a portion 

thereof, has been completed if, at ECOLOGY's sole discretion, such payment is reasonable and approved according to 

this Agreement, as appropriate, or upon completion of an audit as specified herein.

j) RECIPIENT should submit final requests for compensation within thirty (30) days after the expiration date of this 

Agreement. Failure to comply may result in delayed reimbursement.

7. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS

RECIPIENT agrees to comply fully with all applicable Federal, State and local laws, orders, regulations, and permits 

related to this Agreement, including but not limited to:

a) RECIPIENT agrees to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, and policies of the United States and the State 

of Washington which affect wages and job safety. 

b) RECIPIENT agrees to be bound by all federal and state laws, regulations, and policies against discrimination. 

c) RECIPIENT certifies full compliance with all applicable state industrial insurance requirements.

d) RECIPIENT agrees to secure and provide assurance to ECOLOGY that all the necessary approvals and permits 

required by authorities having jurisdiction over the project are obtained.  RECIPIENT must include time in their project 

timeline for the permit and approval processes.

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 55 of 119



Page 18 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

ECOLOGY shall have the right to immediately terminate for cause this Agreement as provided herein if the 

RECIPIENT fails to comply with above requirements.

If any provision of this Agreement violates any statute or rule of law of the state of Washington, it is considered 

modified to conform to that statute or rule of law.

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

RECIPIENT and ECOLOGY agree that any officer, member, agent, or employee, who exercises any function or 

responsibility in the review, approval, or carrying out of this Agreement, shall not have any personal or financial 

interest, direct or indirect, nor affect the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he/she is a part, 

in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.

9. CONTRACTING FOR GOODS AND SERVICES 

RECIPIENT may contract to buy goods or services related to its performance under this Agreement.  RECIPIENT shall 

award all contracts for construction, purchase of goods, equipment, services, and professional architectural and 

engineering services through a competitive process, if required by State law.  RECIPIENT is required to follow 

procurement procedures that ensure legal, fair, and open competition.

RECIPIENT must have a standard procurement process or follow current state procurement procedures.  RECIPIENT 

may be required to provide written certification that they have followed their standard procurement procedures and 

applicable state law in awarding contracts under this Agreement. 

ECOLOGY reserves the right to inspect and request copies of all procurement documentation, and review procurement 

practices related to this Agreement.  Any costs incurred as a result of procurement practices not in compliance with 

state procurement law or the RECIPIENT's normal procedures may be disallowed at ECOLOGY’s sole discretion.

10. DISPUTES

When there is a dispute with regard to the extent and character of the work, or any other matter related to this 

Agreement the determination of ECOLOGY will govern, although the RECIPIENT shall have the right to appeal 

decisions as provided for below:

a) RECIPIENT notifies the funding program of an appeal request.

b) Appeal request must be in writing and state the disputed issue(s).

c) RECIPIENT has the opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of its appeal.  

d) ECOLOGY reviews the RECIPIENT’s appeal.

e) ECOLOGY sends a written answer within ten (10) business days, unless more time is needed, after concluding the 

review.

The decision of ECOLOGY from an appeal will be final and conclusive, unless within thirty (30) days from the date of 

such decision, the RECIPIENT furnishes to the Director of ECOLOGY a written appeal. The decision of the Director or 

duly authorized representative will be final and conclusive.

The parties agree that this dispute process will precede any action in a judicial or quasi-judicial tribunal. 

Appeals of the Director's decision will be brought in the Superior Court of Thurston County.  Review of the Director’s 

decision will not be taken to Environmental and Land Use Hearings Office. 

Pending final decision of a dispute, the RECIPIENT agrees to proceed diligently with the performance of this 

Agreement and in accordance with the decision rendered.

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 56 of 119



Page 19 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

Nothing in this contract will be construed to limit the parties’ choice of another mutually acceptable method, in addition 

to the dispute resolution procedure outlined above.

11. ENVIRONMENTAL STANDARDS 

a) RECIPIENTS who collect environmental-monitoring data must provide these data to ECOLOGY using the 

Environmental Information Management System (EIM).  To satisfy this requirement these data must be successfully 

loaded into EIM, see instructions on the EIM website at: http://www.ecy.wa.gov/eim.

b) RECIPIENTS are required to follow ECOLOGY’s data standards when Geographic Information System (GIS) data 

are collected and processed.  More information and requirements are available at: 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/services/gis/data/standards/standards.htm.  RECIPIENTS shall provide copies to ECOLOGY of 

all final GIS data layers, imagery, related tables, raw data collection files, map products, and all metadata and project 

documentation.

c) RECIPIENTS must prepare a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) when a project involves the collection of 

environmental measurement data.  QAPP is to ensure the consistent application of quality assurance principles to the 

planning and execution of all activities involved in generating data. RECIPIENTS must follow ECOLOGY’s 

Guidelines for Preparing Quality Assurance Project Plans for Environmental Studies, July 2004 (Ecology Publication 

No. 04-03-030).  ECOLOGY shall review and approve the QAPP prior to start of work.  The size, cost, and complexity 

of the QAPP should be in proportion to the magnitude of the sampling effort.

12. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Washington, and the venue of any action brought 

hereunder will be in the Superior Court of Thurston County.

13. INDEMNIFICATION

ECOLOGY will in no way be held responsible for payment of salaries, consultant's fees, and other costs related to the 

project described herein, except as provided in the Scope of Work.

To the extent that the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington permit, each party will indemnify and hold the 

other harmless from and against any liability for any or all injuries to persons or property arising from the negligent act 

or omission of that party or that party's agents or employees arising out of this Agreement.

14. INDEPENDENT STATUS

The employees, volunteers, or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this Agreement will continue 

to be employees, volunteers, or agents of that party and will not for any purpose be employees, volunteers, or agents of 

the other party.

15. KICKBACKS

RECIPIENT is prohibited from inducing by any means any person employed or otherwise involved in this Agreement to 

give up any part of the compensation to which he/she is otherwise entitled to or receive any fee, commission, or gift in 

return for award of a subcontract hereunder.

16. MINORITY AND WOMEN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (MWBE)

RECIPIENT is encouraged to solicit and recruit, to the extent possible, certified minority-owned (MBE) and 

women-owned (WBE) businesses in purchases and contracts initiated under this Agreement.

Contract awards or rejections cannot be made based on MWBE participation; however, the RECIPIENT is encouraged 

to take the following actions, when possible, in any procurement under this Agreement:

a) Include qualified minority and women's businesses on solicitation lists whenever they are potential sources of goods 

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 57 of 119



Page 20 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

or services.

b) Divide the total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities, to permit maximum 

participation by qualified minority and women's businesses.

c) Establish delivery schedules, where work requirements permit, which will encourage participation of qualified 

minority and women's businesses.

d) Use the services and assistance of the Washington State Office of Minority and Women's Business Enterprises 

(OMWBE) (866-208-1064) and the Office of Minority Business Enterprises of the U.S. Department of Commerce, as 

appropriate.

17. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

In the event of inconsistency in this Agreement, unless otherwise provided herein, the inconsistency shall be resolved by 

giving precedence in the following order:  (a) applicable federal and state statutes and regulations; (b) The Agreement; 

(c) Scope of Work; (d) Special Terms and Conditions; (e) Any provisions or terms incorporated herein by reference, 

including the "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants and Loans"; and (f) the General Terms 

and Conditions.

18. PRESENTATION AND PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS

ECOLOGY reserves the right to approve RECIPIENT’s communication documents and materials related to the 

fulfillment of this Agreement: 

a) If requested, RECIPIENT shall provide a draft copy to ECOLOGY for review and approval ten (10) business days 

prior to production and distribution.

b) RECIPIENT shall include time for ECOLOGY’s review and approval process in their project timeline.

c) If requested, RECIPIENT shall provide ECOLOGY two (2) final copies and an electronic copy of any tangible 

products developed.

Copies include any printed materials, and all tangible products developed such as brochures, manuals, pamphlets, 

videos, audio tapes, CDs, curriculum, posters, media announcements, or gadgets with a message, such as a refrigerator 

magnet, and any online communications, such as web pages, blogs, and twitter campaigns. If it is not practical to 

provide a copy, then the RECIPIENT shall provide a description (photographs, drawings, printouts, etc.) that best 

represents the item.

Any communications intended for public distribution that uses ECOLOGY’s logo shall comply with ECOLOGY’s 

graphic requirements and any additional requirements specified in this Agreement.  Before the use of ECOLOGY’s 

logo contact ECOLOGY for guidelines. 

RECIPIENT shall acknowledge in the communications that funding was provided by ECOLOGY.

19. PROGRESS REPORTING

a) RECIPIENT must satisfactorily demonstrate the timely use of funds by submitting payment requests and progress 

reports to ECOLOGY.  ECOLOGY reserves the right to amend or terminate this Agreement if the RECIPIENT does not 

document timely use of funds. 

b) RECIPIENT  must submit a progress report with each payment request.  Payment requests will not be processed 

without a progress report.  ECOLOGY will define the elements and frequency of progress reports.

c) RECIPIENT shall use ECOLOGY’s provided progress report format.  

d) Quarterly progress reports will cover the periods from January 1 through March 31, April 1 through June 30, July 1 

through September 30, and October 1 through December 31.  Reports shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after 

the end of the quarter being reported. 

e) RECIPIENT shall submit the Closeout Report within  thirty (30) days of the expiration date of the project, unless an 

extension has been approved by ECOLOGY.  RECIPIENT shall use the ECOLOGY provided closeout report format.

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 58 of 119



Page 21 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

20. PROPERTY RIGHTS

a) Copyrights and Patents.  When the RECIPIENT creates any copyrightable materials or invents any patentable 

property under this agreement, the RECIPIENT may copyright or patent the same but ECOLOGY retains a royalty free, 

nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, recover, or otherwise use the material(s) or property, and to 

authorize others to use the same for federal, state, or local government purposes.

b) Publications.  When the RECIPIENT or persons employed by the RECIPIENT use or publish ECOLOGY 

information; present papers, lectures, or seminars involving information supplied by ECOLOGY; or use logos, reports, 

maps, or other data in printed reports, signs, brochures, pamphlets, etc., appropriate credit shall be given to ECOLOGY.

c) Presentation and Promotional Materials. ECOLOGY shall have the right to use or reproduce any printed or graphic 

materials produced in fulfillment of this Agreement, in any manner ECOLOGY deems appropriate. ECOLOGY shall 

acknowledge the RECIPIENT as the sole copyright owner in every use or reproduction of the materials.

d) Tangible Property Rights.  ECOLOGY's current edition of "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology 

Grants and Loans," shall control the use and disposition of all real and personal property purchased wholly or in part 

with funds furnished by ECOLOGY in the absence of state and federal statutes, regulations, or policies to the contrary, 

or upon specific instructions with respect thereto in this Agreement.

e) Personal Property Furnished by ECOLOGY.  When ECOLOGY provides personal property directly to the 

RECIPIENT for use in performance of the project, it shall be returned to ECOLOGY prior to final payment by 

ECOLOGY.  If said property is lost, stolen, or damaged while in the RECIPIENT's possession, then ECOLOGY shall 

be reimbursed in cash or by setoff by the RECIPIENT for the fair market value of such property.

f) Acquisition Projects.  The following provisions shall apply if the project covered by this Agreement includes funds 

for the acquisition of land or facilities:  

a. RECIPIENT shall establish that the cost is fair value and reasonable prior to disbursement of funds provided for in 

this Agreement. 

b. RECIPIENT shall provide satisfactory evidence of title or ability to acquire title for each parcel prior to 

disbursement of funds provided by this Agreement.  Such evidence may include title insurance policies, Torrens 

certificates, or abstracts, and attorney's opinions establishing that the land is free from any impediment, lien, or claim 

which would impair the uses intended by this Agreement. 

g) Conversions.  Regardless of the agreement expiration date, the RECIPIENT shall not at any time convert any 

equipment, property, or facility acquired or developed under this Agreement to uses other than those for which 

assistance was originally approved without prior written approval of ECOLOGY.  Such approval may be conditioned 

upon payment to ECOLOGY of that portion of the proceeds of the sale, lease, or other conversion or encumbrance 

which monies granted pursuant to this Agreement bear to the total acquisition, purchase, or construction costs of such 

property.

21. RECORDS, AUDITS, AND INSPECTIONS

RECIPIENT shall maintain complete program and financial records relating to this Agreement, including any 

engineering documentation and field inspection reports of all construction work accomplished.

All records shall: 

a) Be kept in a manner which provides an audit trail for all expenditures.

b) Be kept in a common file to facilitate audits and inspections. 

c) Clearly indicate total receipts and expenditures related to this Agreement.

d) Be open for audit or inspection by ECOLOGY, or by any duly authorized audit representative of the State of 

Washington, for a period of at least three (3) years after the final grant payment or loan repayment, or any dispute 

resolution hereunder.

RECIPIENT shall provide clarification and make necessary adjustments if any audits or inspections identify 

discrepancies in the records.

ECOLOGY reserves the right to audit, or have a designated third party audit, applicable records to ensure that the state 

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 59 of 119



Page 22 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

has been properly invoiced.  Any remedies and penalties allowed by law to recover monies determined owed will be 

enforced.  Repetitive instances of incorrect invoicing or inadequate records may be considered cause for termination.

All work performed under this Agreement and any property and equipment purchased shall be made available to 

ECOLOGY and to any authorized state, federal or local representative for inspection at any time during the course of 

this Agreement and for at least three (3) years following grant or loan termination or dispute resolution hereunder. 

RECIPIENT shall provide right of access to ECOLOGY, or any other authorized representative, at all reasonable times, 

in order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and any other conditions under this Agreement.

22. RECOVERY OF FUNDS

The right of the RECIPIENT to retain monies received as reimbursement payments is contingent upon satisfactory 

performance of this Agreement and completion of the work described in the Scope of Work.

All payments to the RECIPIENT are subject to approval and audit by ECOLOGY, and any unauthorized expenditure(s) 

or unallowable cost charged to this agreement shall be refunded to ECOLOGY by the RECIPIENT.

RECIPIENT shall refund to ECOLOGY the full amount of any erroneous payment or overpayment under this 

Agreement.

RECIPIENT shall refund by check payable to ECOLOGY the amount of any such reduction of payments or repayments 

within thirty (30) days of a written notice.  Interest will accrue at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per year from the 

time ECOLOGY demands repayment of funds.

Any property acquired under this Agreement, at the option of ECOLOGY, may become ECOLOGY's property and the 

RECIPIENT's liability to repay monies will be reduced by an amount reflecting the fair value of such property.

23. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement or any provision of any document incorporated by reference shall be held invalid , 

such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid 

provision, and to this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable.

24. STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA)

RECIPIENT must demonstrate to ECOLOGY’s satisfaction that compliance with the requirements of the State 

Environmental Policy Act (Chapter 43.21C RCW and Chapter 197-11 WAC) have been or will be met.  Any 

reimbursements are subject to this provision.

25. SUSPENSION

When in the best interest of ECOLOGY, ECOLOGY may at any time, and without cause, suspend this Agreement or 

any portion thereof for a temporary period by written notice from ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT. RECIPIENT shall 

resume performance on the next business day following the suspension period unless another day is specified by 

ECOLOGY. 

26. SUSTAINABLE PRACTICES

In order to sustain Washington’s natural resources and ecosystems, the RECIPIENT is fully encouraged to implement 

sustainable practices and to purchase environmentally preferable products under this Agreement.  

a) Sustainable practices may include such activities as: use of clean energy, use of double-sided printing, hosting low 

impact meetings, and setting up recycling and composting programs.  

b) Purchasing may include such items as: sustainably produced products and services, EPEAT registered computers 

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 60 of 119



Page 23 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

and imaging equipment, independently certified green cleaning products, remanufactured toner cartridges, products 

with reduced packaging, office products that are refillable, rechargeable, and recyclable, and 100% post-consumer 

recycled paper.

For more suggestions visit ECOLOGY’s web page:  Green Purchasing, http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/swfa/epp.

27. TERMINATION

a) For Cause

ECOLOGY may terminate for cause this Agreement with a seven (7) calendar days prior written notification to the 

RECIPIENT, at the sole discretion of ECOLOGY, for failing to perform an Agreement requirement or for a material 

breach of any term or condition.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance 

rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 

Failure to Commence Work. ECOLOGY reserves the right to terminate this Agreement if RECIPIENT fails to 

commence work on the project funded within four (4) months after the effective date of this Agreement, or by any date 

mutually agreed upon in writing for commencement of work, or the time period defined within the Scope of Work.

Non-Performance. The obligation of ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT is contingent upon satisfactory performance by the 

RECIPIENT of all of its obligations under this Agreement.  In the event the RECIPIENT unjustifiably fails, in the 

opinion of ECOLOGY, to perform any obligation required of it by this Agreement, ECOLOGY may refuse to pay any 

further funds, terminate in whole or in part this Agreement, and exercise any other rights under this Agreement.

Despite the above, the RECIPIENT shall not be relieved of any liability to ECOLOGY for damages sustained by 

ECOLOGY and the State of Washington because of any breach of this Agreement by the RECIPIENT.  ECOLOGY 

may withhold payments for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due ECOLOGY from 

the RECIPIENT is determined.

b) For Convenience

ECOLOGY may terminate for convenience this Agreement, in whole or in part, for any reason when it is the best 

interest of ECOLOGY, with a thirty (30) calendar days prior written notification to the RECIPIENT.  If this Agreement 

is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms 

of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

Non-Allocation of Funds. ECOLOGY’s ability to make payments is contingent on availability of funding.  In the event 

funding from state, federal or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way after the effective date and 

prior to the completion or expiration date of this agreement, ECOLOGY, at its sole discretion, may elect to terminate 

the agreement, in whole or part, or renegotiate the agreement, subject to new funding limitations or conditions.  

ECOLOGY may also elect to suspend performance of the agreement until ECOLOGY determines the funding 

insufficiency is resolved.  ECOLOGY may exercise any of these options with no notification or restrictions.

If payments have been discontinued by ECOLOGY due to unavailable funds, the RECIPIENT shall not be obligated to 

repay monies which had been paid to the RECIPIENT prior to such termination.

RECIPIENT’s obligation to continue or complete the work described in this Agreement shall be contingent upon 

availability of funds by the RECIPIENT's governing body.

c) By Mutual Agreement

ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time, by mutual written 

agreement.

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 61 of 119



Page 24 of 24Agreement No: WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050

Project Title: 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater Capacity Grants

Recipient Name: City of Covington

d) In Event of Termination

All finished or unfinished documents, data studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, reports or other 

materials prepared by the RECIPIENT under this Agreement, at the option of ECOLOGY, will become property of 

ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work 

completed on such documents and other materials. 

Nothing contained herein shall preclude ECOLOGY from demanding repayment of all funds paid to the RECIPIENT in 

accordance with Recovery of Funds, identified herein.

28. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY

RECIPIENT shall ensure that in all subcontracts entered into by the RECIPIENT pursuant to this Agreement, the state 

of Washington is named as an express third party beneficiary of such subcontracts with full rights as such.

29. WAIVER

Waiver of a default or breach of any provision of this Agreement is not a waiver of any subsequent default or breach, 

and will not be construed as a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless stated as such in writing by the 

authorized representative of ECOLOGY.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS LAST UPDATED 12/25/2015

WQSWCAP-1517-Coving-00050 62 of 119



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 26, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING STANDARDS FOR PUBLIC 

DEFENSE.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Ordinance Adopting Standards for Public Defense 
2. WSBA Standards for Indigent Defense, June 3, 2011 
 

PREPARED BY:  Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda bill action is for the city council to consider and adopt the attached 
proposed ordinance establishing standards for public defense. (See Attachment 1) 
 
RCW 10.101.030 requires the city to adopt standards for the delivery of public defense 
services—the city has not yet adopted such standards. In addition to the requirement under state 
statute, Washington Supreme Court by Order No. 25700-A-1004, as amended, adopted new 
standards for indigent defense and such standards became effective October 1, 2012, with the 
exception of the standard relating to case load limits and methodology, which became effective 
on January 1, 2015.  
 
The Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) has promulgated indigent defense standards, last 
revised in 2011, which may be adopted by reference (as opposed to developing and adopting the 
city’s own standards) and which conform to current court requirements for case load limits and 
methodology. (See Attachment 2) The WSBA standards provide a non-weighted case load 
standard (which, given the city’s relatively low volume of cases, is an efficient methodology for 
the city to use, rather than adopting a detailed case-weighing standard for every type of case that 
may be charged in municipal court). The city is free to adopt revised public defense standards at 
any time (including a case weighing schedule).    
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not approve the proposed standards for public defense. 
2. Provide alternate direction to staff to return with amendments to the proposed standards 

for public defense. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance           Resolution          Motion         Other 

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to pass an ordinance adopting standards for public defense services, 
in substantial form as that attached hereto. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney; City Clerk 

63 of 119



ORDINANCE NO. 04-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
RELATING TO STANDARDS FOR THE DELIVERY OF 
PUBLIC DEFENSE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 
AND CORRECTIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, it is a requirement of the Washington State Constitution and Chapter 10.101 
RCW, and a public purpose, that each person charged with a crime punishable by incarceration 
be provided with effective legal representation in order to ensure equal justice under the law 
without regard to his/her ability to pay; and 

WHEREAS, effective legal representation should be provided consistent with the 
constitutional requirements of fairness, equal protection, and due process in all cases where the 
right to counsel attaches; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 10.101 RCW requires the City of Covington (“City”) to adopt 
standards for the delivery of public defense services; and  

WHEREAS, the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) has promulgated indigent 
defense standards, last revised in 2011, which state the objective of the promulgated standards 
as:    

The objective of these guidelines is to alert the attorney to the  
course of action that may be necessary, advisable, or appropriate, 
and thereby assist the attorney in deciding upon the particular  
actions that must be taken in a case to assure that the client 
receives the best representation possible;  

WHEREAS, the Washington Supreme Court by Order No. 25700-A-1004, as amended, 
has adopted new standards for indigent defense and a certificate of compliance; and   

WHEREAS, such standards by court order, with the exception of Standard 3.4, became 
effective October 1, 2012; and   

 WHEREAS, new Standard 3.4 relating to case load limits and methodology became 
effective on January 1, 2015;  

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City, consistent with Chapter 10.101 RCW, 
Washington Supreme Court Order no 25700-A-1004, and other applicable law, to make public 
defense services available in an efficient manner that provides effective representation at 
reasonable cost to the City; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

ATTACHMENT 1

64 of 119



 
 Section 1. Adoption of Public Defense Standards. To the extent appropriate at the 
municipal court level, the Washington State Bar Association Standards for Indigent Defense 
Services, as currently approved on June 3, 2011 and hereafter amended, attached as Exhibit A 
hereto and fully incorporated by this reference, shall constitute standards for the delivery of 
public defense services as that term is used in RCW 10.101.030 until such time as the city 
council may by ordinance adjust those standards.  

 Section 2.  Severability. The provisions of this ordinance are declared separate and 
severable.  The invalidity of any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section, or portion of 
this ordinance, or the invalidity of the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall 
not affect the validity of the remainder of the ordinance or the validity of its application to other 
persons or circumstances.  

Section 3.  Corrections by City Clerk.  Upon approval of the City Attorney, the City 
Clerk and/or the codifiers of this ordinance are authorized to make necessary technical 
corrections to this ordinance, including, without limitation, the correction of clerical errors; 
references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or section/subsection 
numbering. 

Section 4.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 
after its passage and legal publication.  A summary of this ordinance, consisting of the ordinance 
title, may be published in lieu of publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 

 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Covington, Washington at its regular 
meeting on the 26th of January 2016, and signed in authentication of its passage. 

 
____________________________                      
Mayor Jeff Wagner 
 
PUBLISHED:  January 29, 2016 

       EFFECTIVE:   February 3, 2016 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
___________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY:   
 
___________________________                 
Sara Springer, City Attorney       
 
         

65 of 119



Washington State Bar Association 

Standards for Indigent Defense Services 
[Approved by the Board of Governors June 3, 2011] 

ORDINANCE NO. 04-2016 
EXHIBIT A

ATTACHMENT 2

66 of 119



 

1 

STANDARD ONE: Compensation 

Standard:  

Public defense attorneys and staff should be compensated at a rate commensurate with 
their training and experience. To attract and retain qualified personnel, compensation 
and benefit levels should be comparable to those of attorneys and staff in prosecutorial 
offices in the area.  
For assigned counsel, reasonable compensation should be provided. Compensation 
should reflect the time and labor required to be spent by the attorney and the degree of 
professional experience demanded by the case. Assigned counsel should be 
compensated for out-of-pocket expenses.  
Contracts should provide for extraordinary compensation over and above the normal 
contract terms for cases which require an extraordinary amount of time and preparation, 
including, but not limited to, death penalty cases. Services which require extraordinary 
fees shall be defined in the contract.  
Attorneys who have a conflict of interest shall not have to compensate the new, 
substituted attorney out of their own funds.   
Flat fees, caps on compensation, and lump-sum contracts for trial attorneys are 
improper in death penalty cases. Private practice attorneys appointed in death penalty 
cases should be fully compensated for actual time and service performed at a 
reasonable hourly rate with no distinction between rates for services performed in court 
and out of court. Periodic billing and payment should be available. The hourly rate 
established for lead counsel in a particular case should be based on the circumstances 
of the case and the attorney being appointed, including the following factors: the 
anticipated time and labor required in the case, the complexity of the case, the skill and 
experience required to provide adequate legal representation, the attorney's overhead 
expenses, and the exclusion of other work by the attorney during the case.  Under no 
circumstances should the hourly rate for lead counsel, whether private or public 
defender, appointed in a death penalty case be less than $125 per hour (in 2006 
dollars). 

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 5-2.4 and 5-3.1.  
American Bar Association, Guidelines for the Appointment and Performance in Death Penalty Cases, 
1988, Standard 10-1.  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standards 13.7 and 13.11.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standard IV-4.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Legal 
Defense Contracts, 1984, Standard III-10 and III-11.  
Seattle-King County Bar Association Indigent Defense Services Task Force, Guidelines for Accreditation 
of Defender Agencies, 1982, Guideline No. 6.  

 

67 of 119



 

2 

 
STANDARD TWO: Duties and Responsibilities of Counsel  

Standard: 

The legal representation plan shall require that defense services be provided to all clients in 
a professional, skilled manner consistent with minimum standards set forth by the American 
Bar Association, applicable state bar association standards, the Rules of Professional 
Conduct, case law and applicable court rules defining the duties of counsel and the rights of 
defendants in criminal cases. Counsel's primary and most fundamental responsibility is to 
promote and protect the interests of the client.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 4-1.1, 5-5.1 and 5-1.1.  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standards 13.1.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standard II-2.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Guideline III-18.  
American Bar Association Guidelines for the Appointment and Performance of Defense Counsel in Death 
Penalty Cases.  [Link] 

 
 
STANDARD THREE: Caseload Limits and Types of Cases 

Standard: 

1. The contract or other employment agreement or government budget shall specify 
the types of cases for which representation shall be provided and the maximum 
number of cases which each attorney shall be expected to handle.  

2. The caseload of public defense attorneys shall allow each lawyer to give each client 
the time and effort necessary to ensure effective representation. Neither defender 
organizations, county offices, contract attorneys nor assigned counsel should accept 
workloads that, by reason of their excessive size, interfere with the rendering of 
quality representation. As used in this Standard, "quality representation" is intended 
to describe the minimum level of attention, care and skill that Washington citizens 
would expect of their state's criminal justice system.  

3. General Considerations:  Caseload limits reflect the maximum caseloads for fully 
supported full-time defense attorneys for cases of average complexity and effort in 
each case type specified. Caseload limits assume a reasonably even distribution of 
cases throughout the year. 

The increased complexity of practice in many areas will require lower caseload 
ceilings.  The maximum caseload limit should be adjusted downward when the mix 
of case assignments is weighted toward more serious offenses or case types that 

68 of 119

http://www.abanet.org/deathpenalty/guidelines.pdf


 

3 

demand more investigation, legal research and writing, use of experts and/or social 
workers or other expenditure of time and resources. In particular, felony caseloads 
should be assessed by the workload required, and certain cases and types of cases 
should be weighted accordingly. 
If a defender or assigned counsel is carrying a mixed caseload including cases from 
more than one category of cases, these standards should be applied proportionately 
to determine a full caseload. In jurisdictions where assigned counsel or contract 
attorneys also maintain private law practices, the caseload should be based on the 
percentage of time the lawyer devotes to public defense.  

Definition of case: A case is defined as the filing of a document with the court 
naming a person as defendant or respondent, to which an attorney is appointed in 
order to provide representation.   

4. Caseload Limits: The caseload of a full-time public defense attorney or assigned 
counsel shall not exceed the following:   

150 Felonies per attorney per year; or 

300 Misdemeanor cases per attorney per year; or in certain circumstances 
described below the caseload may be adjusted to no more than 400 cases, 
depending upon: 

 The caseload distribution between simple misdemeanors and complex 
misdemeanors; or 

 Jurisdictional policies such as post-filing diversion and opportunity to 
negotiate resolution of large number of cases as non-criminal violations; 

 Other court administrative procedures that permit a defense lawyer to handle 
more cases; or 

250 Juvenile Offender cases per attorney per year; or 
80 open Juvenile Dependency cases per attorney; or 

250 Civil Commitment cases per attorney per year; or 

1 Active Death Penalty trial court cases at a time plus a limited number of non death 
penalty cases compatible with the time demand of the death penalty case and 
consistent with the professional requirements of Standard 3.2 supra; or 

36 Appeals to an appellate court hearing a case on the record and briefs per 
attorney per year.  (The 36 standard assumes experienced appellate attorneys 

handling cases with transcripts of an average length of 350 pages. If attorneys do 

not have significant appellate experience and/or the average transcript length is 

greater than 350 pages, the caseload should be accordingly reduced.)    

 

69 of 119



 

4 

Related Standards 
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 4-1.2, 5-4.3. 
American Bar Association Guidelines for the Appointment and Performance of Defense Counsel in Death 
Penalty Cases.  [Link] 

American Bar Association, Ethical Obligations of Lawyers Who Represent Indigent Criminal Defendants When 
Excessive Caseloads Interfere With Competent and Diligent Representation, May 13, 2006, Formal Opinion 06-
441.  [Link] 

The American Council of Chief Defenders Statement on Caseloads and Workloads, (2007).  [Link] 

American Bar Association Eight Guidelines of Public Defense Related to Excessive Caseloads.  [Link] 

National Advisory Commission on Criminal Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, Standard 
13.12.  
American Bar Association Disciplinary Rule 6-101. 

American Bar Association Ten Principles of a Public Defense Delivery System.  [Link] 

ABA Standards of Practice for Lawyers who Represent Children in Abuse & Neglect Cases, (1996)  
American Bar Association, Chicago, IL. 
The American Council of Chief Defenders Ethical Opinion 03-01 (2003).  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standards IV-I.   
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Model Contract for Public Defense Services (2002).  [Link] 

NACC Recommendations for Representation of Children in Abuse and Neglect Cases (2001).  [Link] 

City of Seattle Ordinance Number: 121501 (2004).  [Link] 

Seattle-King County Bar Association Indigent Defense Services Task Force, Guideline Number 1. 
Washington State Office of Public Defense, Parents Representation Program Standards Of 
Representation (2009).  [Link] 

 
 

STANDARD FOUR: Responsibility for Expert Witnesses 

Standard:  

Reasonable compensation for expert witnesses necessary to preparation and presentation 
of the defense case shall be provided. Expert witness fees should be maintained and 
allocated from funds separate from those provided for defender services. Requests for 
expert witness fees should be made through an ex parte motion. The defense should be 
free to retain the expert of its choosing and in no cases should be forced to select experts 
from a list pre-approved by either the court or the prosecution.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 5-1.4.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standard IV 2d, 3.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Defense 
Contracts, 1983, Standard III-8d.  
National Advisory Commission, Task Force on Courts, 1973, Standard 13.14.  

 

70 of 119

http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/migrated/2011_build/death_penalty_representation/2003guidelines.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.abanet.org/legalservices/sclaid/defender/downloads/ethics_opinion_defender_caseloads_06_441.pdf
http://www.nlada.org/DMS/Documents/1189179200.71/EDITEDFINALVERSIONACCDCASELOADSTATEMENTsept6.pdf
http://www.ocdla.org/pdfs/ABA_8_guidelines.pdf
http://www.americanbar.org/content/dam/aba/migrated/legalservices/downloads/sclaid/indigentdefense/tenprinciplesbooklet.authcheckdam.pdf
http://www.sado.org/fees/model_contract.pdf
http://www.naccchildlaw.org/resource/resmgr/docs/nacc_standards_and_recommend.pdf
http://clerk.seattle.gov/~scripts/nph-brs.exe?s1=public+defense&s3=&s4=&s2=&s5=&Sect4=AND&l=20&Sect2=THESON&Sect3=PLURON&Sect5=CBORY&Sect6=HITOFF&d=ORDF&p=1&u=%2F%7Epublic%2Fcbory.htm&r=6&f=G
http://opd.wa.gov/ParentsRep/090401%20Program%20Attorney%20Standards.pdf


 

5 

 
STANDARD FIVE:  Administrative Costs 

Standard: 
 
1. Contracts for public defense services shall provide for or include administrative costs 

associated with providing legal representation. These costs should include but are 
not limited to travel, telephones, law library, including electronic legal research, 
financial accounting, case management systems, computers and software, office 
space and supplies, training, meeting the reporting requirements imposed by these 
standards, and other costs necessarily incurred in the day-to-day management of 
the contract.   

2. Public defense attorneys shall have an office that accommodates confidential 
meetings with clients and receipt of mail, and adequate telephone services to ensure 
prompt response to client contact.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, Providing Defense Services.  

National Study Commission on Defense Services, Guidelines for Legal Defense Systems in the United 
States, (1976), Guideline 3.4.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, 1976 I-3, IV 2a-e, IV 5.  

 
 
STANDARD SIX: Investigators 

Standard:  

1. Public defense attorneys shall use investigation services as appropriate. 

2. Public defender offices, assigned counsel, and private law firms holding public defense 
contracts should employ investigators with investigation training and experience. A 
minimum of one investigator should be employed for every four attorneys.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 4-4.1 and 5-1.14.  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standard 13.14.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standard IV-3.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Standard III-9.  
Seattle-King County Bar Association Indigent Defense Services Task Force, Guidelines for Accreditation 
of Defender Agencies, 1982, Guideline Number 8. 

 
 

71 of 119



 

6 

 

STANDARD SEVEN: Support Services   

Standard:  

Public defense attorneys shall have adequate numbers of investigators, secretaries, word 
processing staff, paralegals, social work staff, mental health professionals and other support 
services, including computer system staff and network administrators. These professionals 
are essential to ensure the effective performance of defense counsel during trial preparation, 
in the preparation of dispositional plans, and at sentencing.  

1. Legal Assistants - At least one full-time legal assistant should be employed for every 
four attorneys. Fewer legal assistants may be necessary, however, if the agency or 
attorney has access to word processing staff, or other additional staff performing 
clerical work.  Defenders should have a combination of technology and personnel 
that will meet their needs. 

2. Social Work Staff - Social work staff should be available to assist in developing 
release, treatment, and dispositional alternatives. 

3. Mental Health Professionals - Each agency or attorney should have access to mental 
health professionals to perform mental health evaluations. 

4. Investigation staff should be available as provided in Standard Six at a ratio of one 
investigator for every four attorneys. 

5. Each agency or attorney providing public defense services should have access to 
adequate and competent interpreters to facilitate communication with non-English 
speaking and hearing-impaired clients for attorneys, investigators, social workers, 
and administrative staff. 

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 4-8.1 and 5-1.4.  
National Advisory Committee on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, Standard 13.14.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standard IV-3.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Standard III-8.  
Seattle-King County Bar Association Indigent Defense Services Task Force, Guidelines for Accreditation of 
Defender Agencies, 1982, Guideline Number 7.  

 
 
STANDARD EIGHT: Reports of Attorney Activity 

Standard: 

The legal representation plan shall require that the defense attorney or office maintain a 
case-reporting and management information system which includes number and type of 
cases, attorney hours and disposition. This information shall be provided regularly to the 

72 of 119



 

7 

Contracting Authority and shall also be made available to the Office of the Administrator 
of the Courts. Any such system shall be maintained independently from client files so as 
to disclose no privileged information. 
A standardized voucher form shall be used by assigned counsel attorneys seeking 
payment upon completion of a case. For attorneys under contract, payment should be 
made monthly, or at times agreed to by the parties, without regard to the number of 
cases closed in the period. 

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 5-3.3 (b) xii, The Report to the Criminal Justice 
Section Council from the Criminal Justice Standards Committee, 1989.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Defense 
Contracts, 1984 Standard III-22.  

National Study Commission on Defense Services, Guidelines for Legal Defense Systems in the United 
States, 1976, Guideline 3.4, 4.1, and 5.2.  

 
 
STANDARD NINE:  Training 

Standard: 

The legal representation plan shall require that attorneys providing public defense services 
participate in regular training programs on criminal defense law, including a minimum of 
seven hours of continuing legal education annually in areas relating to their public defense 
practice.  
In offices of more than seven attorneys, an orientation and training program for new 
attorneys and legal interns should be held to inform them of office procedure and policy. All 
attorneys should be required to attend regular in-house training programs on developments 
in criminal law, criminal procedure and the forensic sciences.  
Attorneys in civil commitment and dependency practices should attend training programs in 
these areas. Offices should also develop manuals to inform new attorneys of the rules and 
procedures of the courts within their jurisdiction.  
Every attorney providing counsel to indigent accused should have the opportunity to attend 
courses that foster trial advocacy skills and to review professional publications and other 
media.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 5-1.4.  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standard 13.16.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standard V.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Legal Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Standard III-17.  

73 of 119



 

8 

Seattle-King County Bar Association Indigent Defense Services Task Force, Guidelines for Accreditation of 
Defender Agencies, 1982, Guideline Number 3.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for the Appointment and Performance of Counsel in 
Death Penalty Cases, 1988, Standard 9.1.  

 
 
STANDARD TEN: Supervision 

Standard:  

Each agency or firm providing public defense services should provide one full-time 
supervisor for every ten staff lawyers or one half-time supervisor for every five lawyers. 
Supervisors should be chosen from among those lawyers in the office qualified under these 
guidelines to try Class A felonies. Supervisors should serve on a rotating basis, and except 
when supervising fewer than ten lawyers, should not carry caseloads.  

Related Standards:  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standard 13.9.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Legal Defense 
Contract, 1984, Standard III-16.  
Seattle-King County Bar Association Indigent Defense Services Task Force, Guidelines for Accreditation of 
Defender Agencies, 1982, Guideline Number 4.  

 
 
STANDARD ELEVEN: Monitoring and Evaluation of Attorneys 

Standard:  

The legal representation plan for provision of public defense services should establish a 
procedure for systematic monitoring and evaluation of attorney performance based upon 
publicized criteria. Supervision and evaluation efforts should include review of time and 
caseload records, review and inspection of transcripts, in-court observations, and periodic 
conferences.  
Performance evaluations made by a supervising attorney should be supplemented by 
comments from judges, prosecutors, other defense lawyers and clients. Attorneys should be 
evaluated on their skill and effectiveness as criminal lawyers or as dependency or civil 
commitment advocates.  

Related Standards:  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Standard III-16.  
National Study Commission on Defense Services, Guidelines for Legal Defense Systems in the United States, 
1976, Recommendations 5.4 and 5.5.  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standard 13.9.  

74 of 119



 

9 

 
 
STANDARD TWELVE:  Substitution of Counsel 

Standard:   

The attorney engaged by local government to provide public defense services should 
not sub-contract with another firm or attorney to provide representation and should 
remain directly involved in the provision of representation. If the contract is with a firm or 
office, the contracting authority should request the names and experience levels of 
those attorneys who will actually be providing the services, to ensure they meet 
minimum qualifications. The employment agreement shall address the procedures for 
continuing representation of clients upon the conclusion of the agreement.  Alternate or 
conflict counsel should be available for substitution in conflict situations at no cost to the 
counsel declaring the conflict. 

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, Standard 5-5.2.  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standard 13.1.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Guideline III-23.  

 
 
STANDARD THIRTEEN: Limitations on Private Practice  

Standard:  

Private attorneys who provide public defense representation shall set limits on the amount of 
privately retained work which can be accepted. These limits shall be based on the 
percentage of a full-time caseload which the public defense cases represent.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 4-1.2(d), 5-3.2.  
American Bar Association, Ethical Obligations of Lawyers Who Represent Indigent Criminal Defendants When 
Excessive Caseloads Interfere With Competent and Diligent Representation, May 13, 2006, Formal Opinion 06-
441.  [Link] 

National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standard 13.7.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standard III-3 and IV-1.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Legal Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Guideline III-6.  

 
 

75 of 119

http://www.abanet.org/legalservices/sclaid/defender/downloads/ethics_opinion_defender_caseloads_06_441.pdf


 

10 

 

STANDARD FOURTEEN: Qualifications of Attorneys 

Standard: 

1. In order to assure that indigent accused receive the effective assistance of 
counsel to which they are constitutionally entitled, attorneys providing defense 
services shall meet the following minimum professional qualifications:  
A. Satisfy the minimum requirements for practicing law in Washington as determined by 

the Washington Supreme Court; and 
B. Be familiar with the statutes, court rules, constitutional provisions, and case law 

relevant to their practice area; and 
C. Be familiar with the Washington Rules of Professional Conduct; and  
D. Be familiar with the Performance Guidelines for Criminal Defense Representation 

approved by the Washington State Bar Association; and  
E. Be familiar with the consequences of a conviction or adjudication, including possible 

immigration consequences and the possibility of civil commitment proceedings 
based on a criminal conviction; and 

F. Be familiar with mental health issues and be able to identify the need to obtain expert 
services; and 

G. Complete seven hours of continuing legal education within each calendar year in 
courses relating to their public defense practice. 

2. Trial attorneys' qualifications according to severity or type of case1: 
A. Death Penalty Representation.  Each attorney acting as lead counsel in a death 

penalty case or an aggravated homicide case in which the decision to seek the 
death penalty has not yet been made shall meet the following requirements:  
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and  
ii. At least five years criminal trial experience; and  
iii. Have prior experience as lead counsel in no fewer than nine jury trials of 

serious and complex cases which were tried to completion; and  
iv. Have served as lead or co-counsel in at least one jury trial in which the death 

penalty was sought; and 
v. Have experience in preparation of mitigation packages in aggravated 

homicide or persistent offender cases; and 

                                                           
1 Attorneys working toward qualification for a particular category of cases under this standard may 
associate with lead counsel who is qualified under this standard for that category of cases. 
 
 

76 of 119



 

11 

vi. Have completed at least one death penalty defense seminar within the 
previous two years; and 

vii. Meet the requirements of SPRC 2.2 
The defense team in a death penalty case should include, at a minimum, the two 
attorneys appointed pursuant to SPRC 2, a mitigation specialist and an investigator. 
Psychiatrists, psychologists and other experts and support personnel should be added 
as needed.  
B. Adult Felony Cases - Class A.  Each attorney representing a defendant accused of a 

Class A felony as defined in RCW 9A.20.020 shall meet the following 
requirements: 
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and  
ii. Either:  

a. has served two years as a prosecutor; or  
b. has served two years as a public defender; or two years in a private 

criminal practice, and 
iii. Has been trial counsel alone or with other trial counsel and handled a 

significant portion of the trial in three felony cases that have been submitted to 
a jury.  

C. Adult Felony Cases - Class B Violent Offense.  Each attorney representing a 
defendant accused of a Class B violent offense as defined in RCW 9A.20.020 shall 
meet the following requirements: 
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and  
ii. Either:  

a. has served one year as prosecutor; or  
b. has served one year as public defender; or one year in a private criminal 

practice; and  

                                                           
2
SPRC 2 APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL 

At least two lawyers shall be appointed for the trial and also for the direct appeal. The trial court shall retain responsibility for 
appointing counsel for trial. The Supreme Court shall appoint counsel for the direct appeal. Notwithstanding RAP 15.2(f) and (h), the 
Supreme Court will determine all motions to withdraw as counsel on appeal. 

A list of attorneys who meet the requirements of proficiency and experience, and who have demonstrated that they are learned in the 
law of capital punishment by virtue of training or experience, and thus are qualified for appointment in death penalty trials and for 
appeals will be recruited and maintained by a panel created by the Supreme Court.  All counsel for trial and appeal must have 
demonstrated the proficiency and commitment to quality representation which is appropriate to a capital case.  Both counsel at trial 
must have five years’ experience in the practice of criminal law be familiar with and experienced in the utilization of expert witnesses 
and evidence, and not be presently  serving as appointed counsel in another active trial level death penalty case. One counsel must be, 
and both may be, qualified for appointment in capital trials on the list, unless circumstances exist such that it is in the defendant’s 
interest to appoint otherwise qualified counsel learned in the law of capital punishment by virtue of training or experience. The trial 
court shall make findings of fact if good cause is found for not appointing list counsel. 

At least one counsel on appeal must have three years’ experience in the field of criminal appellate law and be learned in the law of 
capital punishment by virtue of training or experience.  In appointing counsel on appeal, the Supreme Court will consider the list, but 
will have the final discretion in the appointment of counsel.  [Link] 

77 of 119

http://www.courts.wa.gov/court_rules/?fa=court_rules.display&group=sup&set=SPRC&ruleid=supsprc2


 

12 

iii. Has been trial counsel alone or with other counsel and handled a 
significant portion of the trial in two Class C felony cases that have been 
submitted to a jury. 

D. Adult Sex Offense Cases.  Each attorney representing a client in an adult sex 
offense case shall meet the following requirements: 
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1 and Section 2(C); and  
ii. Been counsel alone of record in an adult or juvenile sex offense case or 

shall be supervised by or consult with an attorney who has experience 
representing juveniles or adults in sex offense cases. 

E. Adult Felony Cases - All other Class B Felonies, Class C Felonies, Probation or 
Parole Revocation.  Each attorney representing a defendant accused of a Class B 
felony not defined in Section 2(C) or (D) above or a Class C felony, as defined in 
RCW 9A.20.020, or involved in a probation or parole revocation hearing shall meet 
the following requirements:  
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1, and  
ii. Either:  

a. has served one year as a prosecutor; or  
b. has served one year as a public defender; or one year in a private criminal 

practice; and 
iii. Has been trial counsel alone or with other trial counsel and handled a 

significant portion of the trial in two criminal cases that have been submitted to 
a jury; and 

iv. Each attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first felony trial by a 
supervisor if available.  

F. Persistent Offender (Life Without Possibility of Release) Representation.  
Each attorney acting as lead counsel in a “two-strikes” or “three strikes” case in 
which a conviction will result in a mandatory sentence of life in prison without 
parole shall meet the following requirements: 

i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; 3 and  
ii. Have at least: 

a. four years criminal trial experience; and 
b. one year experience as a felony defense attorney; and 
c. experience as lead counsel in at least one Class A felony trial; and 
d. experience as counsel in cases involving each of the following: 

                                                           
3 RCW 10.101.060 (1)(a)(iii) provides that counties receiving funding from the state Office of Public Defense under 
that statute must require “attorneys who handle the most serious cases to meet specified qualifications as set forth in the 
Washington state bar association endorsed standards for public defense services or participate in at least one case consultation 
per case with office of public defense resource attorneys who are so qualified. The most serious cases include all cases of murder 
in the first or second degree, persistent offender cases, and class A felonies.”  
 

78 of 119



 

13 

1. Mental health issues; and 
2. Sexual offenses, if the current offense or a prior conviction that is one 

of the predicate cases resulting in the possibility of life in prison 
without parole is a sex offense; and 

3. Expert witnesses; and 
4. One year of appellate experience or demonstrated legal writing 

ability. 
G. Juvenile Cases - Class A.  Each attorney representing a juvenile accused of a 

Class A felony shall meet the following requirements:  

i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1, and  
ii. Either:  

a. has served one year as a prosecutor; or  
b. has served one year as a public defender;  one year in a private 

criminal practice; and 
iii. Has been trial counsel alone of record in five Class B and C felony trials; 

and 
iv. Each attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first juvenile trial by a 

supervisor, if available. 
H. Juvenile Cases - Classes B and C.  Each attorney representing a juvenile accused 

of a Class B or C felony shall meet the following requirements:  
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and  
ii. Either:  

a. has served one year as a prosecutor; or  
b. has served one year as a public defender; or one year in a private 

criminal practice, and 
iii. has been trial counsel alone in five misdemeanor cases brought to a final 

resolution; and 
iv. Each attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first juvenile trial by a 

supervisor if available.  
I. Juvenile Sex Offense Cases.  Each attorney representing a client in a juvenile sex 

offense case shall meet the following requirements: 
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1 and Section 2(H); and  
ii. Been counsel alone of record in an adult or juvenile sex offense case or  

shall be supervised by or consult with an attorney who has experience 
representing juveniles or adults in sex offense cases. 

J. Juvenile Status Offenses Cases.  Each attorney representing a client in a “Becca” 
matter shall meet the following requirements: 
i. The minimum requirements as outlined in Section 1; and 

79 of 119



 

14 

ii. Either:  
a. have represented clients in at least two similar cases under the 

supervision of a more experienced attorney or completed at least three 
hours of CLE training specific to “status offense” cases; or 

b. have participated in at least one consultation per case with a more 
experienced attorney who is qualified under this section. 

K. Misdemeanor Cases.  Each attorney representing a defendant involved in a matter 
concerning a simple misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor or condition of 
confinement, shall meet the requirements as outlined in Section 1.  

L. Dependency Cases.  Each attorney representing a client in a dependency matter 
shall meet the following requirements:  
i. The minimum requirements as outlined in Section 1; and  
ii. Attorneys handling termination hearings shall have six months 

dependency experience or have significant experience in handling complex 
litigation.  

iii. Attorneys in dependency matters should be familiar with expert 
 services and treatment resources for substance abuse. 

iv. Attorneys representing children in dependency matters should have 
knowledge, training, experience, and ability in communicating effectively with 
children, or have participated in at least one consultation per case either with a 
state Office of Public Defense resource attorney or other attorney qualified 
under this section. 

M. Civil Commitment Cases.  Each attorney representing a respondent shall meet the 
following requirements:  
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and  
ii. Each staff attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first 90 or 180 day 

commitment hearing by a supervisor; and  
iii. Shall not represent a respondent in a 90 or 180 day commitment hearing 

unless he or she has either:  
a. served one year as a prosecutor, or  
b. served one year as a public defender, or one year in a private civil 

commitment practice, and  
c. been trial counsel in five civil commitment initial hearings; and 

iv. Shall not represent a respondent in a jury trial unless he or she has 
conducted a felony jury trial as lead counsel; or been co-counsel with a more 
experienced attorney in a 90 or 180 day commitment hearing. 

N. Sex Offender “Predator” Commitment Cases.  Generally, there should be two 
counsel on each sex offender commitment case.  The lead counsel shall meet the 
following requirements: 
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 

80 of 119



 

15 

ii. Have at least: 
a. Three years criminal trial experience; and 
b. One year experience as a felony defense attorney or one year 

experience as a criminal appeals attorney; and 
c. Experience as lead counsel in at least one felony trial; and 
d. Experience as counsel in cases involving each of the following: 

1. Mental health issues; and 
2. Sexual offenses; and 
3. Expert witnesses; and 

e. Familiarity with the Civil Rules; and 
f. One year of appellate experience or demonstrated legal writing 

ability.   
Other counsel working on a sex offender commitment cases should meet the 
Minimum Requirements in Section 1 and have either one year experience as a 
public defender or significant experience in the preparation of criminal cases, 
including legal research and writing and training in trial advocacy. 

O. Contempt of Court Cases.  Each attorney representing a respondent shall meet 
the following requirements:  
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and  
ii. Each attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first three contempt of 

court hearings by a supervisor or more experienced attorney, or participate in 
at least one consultation per case with a state Office of Public Defense 
resource attorney or other attorney qualified in this area of practice. 

P. Specialty Courts.  Each attorney representing a client in a specialty court (e.g., 
mental health court, drug diversion court, homelessness court) shall meet the 
following requirements: 
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
ii. The requirements set forth above for representation in the type of practice 

involved in the specialty court (e.g., felony, misdemeanor, juvenile); and  
iii. Be familiar with mental health and substance abuse issues and treatment 

alternatives.  

3. Appellate Representation. 
Each attorney who is counsel for a case on appeal to the Washington Supreme Court or 
to the Washington Court of Appeals shall meet the following requirements:  
A. The minimum requirements as outlined in Section 1; and  
B. Either:  

i. has filed a brief with the Washington Supreme Court or any Washington 
Court of Appeals in at least one criminal case within the past two years; or  

81 of 119



 

16 

ii. has equivalent appellate experience, including filing appellate briefs in 
other jurisdictions, at least one year as an appellate court or federal court clerk, 
extensive trial level briefing or other comparable work.  

C. Attorneys with primary responsibility for handling a death penalty appeal shall 
have at least five years' criminal experience, preferably including at least one 
homicide trial and at least six appeals from felony convictions, and meet the 
requirements of SPRC 2. 

RALJ Misdemeanor Appeals to Superior Court: Each attorney who is counsel alone 
for a case on appeal to the Superior Court from a Court of Limited Jurisdiction should 
meet the minimum requirements as outlined in Section 1, and have had significant 
training or experience in either criminal appeals, criminal motions practice, extensive trial 
level briefing, clerking for an appellate judge, or assisting a more experienced attorney in 
preparing and arguing an RALJ appeal. 

4. Legal Interns.  
A. Legal interns must meet the requirements set out in APR 9.  
B. Legal interns shall receive training pursuant to APR 9 and in offices of more than 

seven attorneys, an orientation and training program for new attorneys and legal 
interns should be held.  

Related Standards:  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, Standard 
13.15.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Public Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Standard III-7.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for the Appointment and Performance of Counsel in 
Death Penalty Cases, 1987, Standard 5.1.  

 
 
STANDARD FIFTEEN: Disposition of Client Complaints 

Standard:  

Each agency or firm or individual contract attorney providing public defense services shall 
have a method to respond promptly to client complaints. Complaints should first be directed 
to the attorney, firm or agency which provided representation. If the client feels that he or 
she has not received an adequate response, the contracting authority or public defense 
administrator should designate a person or agency to evaluate the legitimacy of complaints 
and to follow up meritorious ones. The complaining client should be informed as to the 
disposition of his or her complaint within one week.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 4-5.1 and 4-5.2.  

 

82 of 119



 

17 

 
STANDARD SIXTEEN: Cause for Termination of Defender Services and Removal of 

Attorney 

Standard:  

Contracts for indigent defense services shall include the grounds for termination of the 
contract by the parties. Termination of a provider's contract should only be for good 
cause. Termination for good cause shall include the failure of the attorney to render 
adequate representation to clients; the willful disregard of the rights and best interests of 
the client; and the willful disregard of the standards herein addressed.  
Removal by the court of counsel from representation normally should not occur over the 
objection of the attorney and the client.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, Standard 5-1.3, 5-5.3.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Defense 
Contracts, 1984, Guideline III-5.  
National Study Commission on Defense Services, Guidelines for Legal Defense Systems in the United 
States, 1976, Recommendations 2.12 and 2.14.  
National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, 
Standard 13.8.  

 
 
STANDARD SEVENTEEN: Non-Discrimination 

Standard:  

Neither the Contracting Authority, in its selection of an attorney, firm or agency to 
provide public defense representation, nor the attorneys selected, in their hiring 
practices or in their representation of clients, shall discriminate on the grounds of race, 
color, religion, national origin, age, marital status, gender, sexual orientation or 
disability. Both the contracting authority and the contractor shall comply with all federal, 
state, and local non-discrimination requirements.  

Related Standards:  
American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, Providing Defense Services, Standard 5-3.1.  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, 1976, Standard III-8.  

 
 
STANDARD EIGHTEEN: Guidelines for Awarding Defense Contracts 

Standard:  

The county or city should award contracts for public defense services only after 
determining that the attorney or firm chosen can meet accepted professional standards. 

83 of 119



 

18 

Under no circumstances should a contract be awarded on the basis of cost alone. 
Attorneys or firms bidding for contracts must demonstrate their ability to meet these 
standards.  
Contracts should only be awarded to a) attorneys who have at least one year's criminal 
trial experience in the jurisdiction covered by the contract (i.e., City and District Courts, 
Superior Court or Juvenile Court), or b) to a firm where at least one attorney has one 
year's trial experience.  
City attorneys, county prosecutors, and law enforcement officers should not select the 
attorneys who will provide indigent defense services.  

Related Standards:  
National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Guidelines for Negotiating and Awarding Indigent Legal 
Defense Contracts, 1984, Standard IV-3.  

King County Bar Association Indigent Defense Services Task Force, Guidelines for Accreditation of 
Defender Agencies, 1982, Statement of Purpose.  

84 of 119



Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 26, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT WITH CORDI & BEJARANO, INC., P.S., FOR INDIGENT 
DEFENSE SERVICES  

 
RECOMMENDED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Agreement with Cordi & Bejarano, Inc., P.S. for Indigent Defense Services 
 

PREPARED BY:  Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda bill action is for the city council to consider authorizing the city 
manager to execute the proposed attached agreement with Cordi & Bejarano, Inc., P.S. for indigent 
defense (public defender) services. (See Attachment 1)  
 
Chapter 10.101 RCW requires the city to provide effective legal representation for all indigent 
persons charged with a misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor offense and filed by the city with the 
court (the city currently contracts with the King County District Court, Auburn Branch, for court 
services). Cordi & Bejarano, Inc., P.S. have provided such legally required indigent defense 
services for the city since 2005. The city has been satisfied with their services and wish to 
continue contracting with them for the city’s indigent defense services. The proposed contract 
includes revisions to terms and rates to account for the recently enacted public defense standards 
pursuant to Washington Supreme Court Order No. 25700-A-1004.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not authorize the proposed agreement for public defense services. 
2. Provide alternate direction to staff. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Budgeted. The rates in the attached agreement were provided to the city prior to adoption of the 
2016 budget, therefore the funds included for public defense services in the approved 2016 
budget are sufficient to cover the costs of this contract. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution        Motion          Other 

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an agreement with Cordi & 
Bejarano, Inc., P.S., for indigent defense services, in substantial form as that 
attached hereto.  
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director, City Clerk 

85 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES         1 

AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES 

This Agreement is entered into between the City of Covington, A Washington municipal 
Corporation, (“City”) and Cordi & Bejarano, Inc., P.S., a Washington professional services 
corporation, (“Contractor”). 

I. DEFINITIONS

A. Attorney. Attorneys shall mean attorneys working for the law firm of Cordi & Bejarano,
Inc., P.S., and where appropriate, shall include Rule 9 interns.

B. Contractor.   Contractor shall mean the law firm of Cordi & Bejarano, Inc., P.S., and shall
mean each attorney working for the Contractor

C. Defendant.  Defendant shall mean a person charged with a misdemeanor or gross
misdemeanor offense that is filed by the City into the King Co. District Court, and for whom the
Contractor must provide services pursuant to Section III of this Agreement.

II. DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall terminate on the last day of December, 2018, unless extended or 
terminated earlier in a manner permitted by this Agreement. 

III. SCOPE OF WORK AND DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR

A. Criminal Defense Representation – To Whom Provided.  Except in cases in which a conflict
of interest exists, Contractor shall provide criminal defense representation to the following:

1. All defendants who are charged with a criminal offense which falls within the
jurisdiction of the City of Covington, and for which the Contractor has been appointed by the 
City of Covington or by the King Co. District Court as attorney of record pursuant to the City’s 
or the Court’s determination of indigence of the defendant. 

2. All defendants who are not represented by private counsel and who appear for
arraignment in the King County District Court for Covington, shall be represented in a stand-by 
counsel capacity. 

3. All defendants who, while in the custody of the SCORE Corrections Facility (or any
other correctional facility who may contract with Covington), are not represented by private or 
conflict counsel, who accept representation by the Contractor, and who appear before the court. 

B. Provisional and Temporary Appointments.  Contractor shall provide representation of
defendants at arraignment and during in-custody hearings despite the fact that Contractor may
only be provisionally or temporarily appointed to represent the defendants at arraignment and
during the in-custody hearings; provided, that in the event a defendant wishes to enter a plea at
arraignment, the Contractor shall request that the court accept the plea only after the defendant
waives the right to an attorney in manner acceptable to the court.  Contractor shall not provide

ATTACHMENT 1

86 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 2 
 

representation to in-custody defendants who are present on a first appearance as the City has a 
contract with a separate entity for these services. 
 
C.  Representation Provided to Defendants Investigated for Driving Under the Influence (RCW 
46.61.502), Driving Under Twenty-One Consuming Alcohol (RCW 46.61.503), Physical Control 
of a Vehicle Under the Influence (RCW 46.61.504) or Another Misdemeanor or Gross 
Misdemeanor. 
 
Contractor shall be available 24 hours per day, seven days per week, by telephone for the 
purposes of providing representation to suspects or defendants who are in custody and under 
investigation for driving under the influence (RCW 46.61.502), driving under twenty-one 
consuming alcohol (RCW 46.61.503), physical control of a vehicle under the influence (RCW 
46.61.504) or any other misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor.  Contractor shall provide the 
SCORE Corrections Facility and Precinct 3 of the King County Sheriff’s Department with 
telephone numbers of its attorneys that provide direct access to the attorneys, and shall keep such 
telephone numbers up to date.  Contractor may designate times in which specific attorneys may 
be reached, and shall provide the numbers of alternate attorneys if the designated attorney cannot 
be reached. 
 
D.  Duration of Representation of Defendant.  In cases in which the Contractor is appointed as 
attorney of record, and unless Contractor is permitted by the court to withdraw at an earlier time, 
Contractor shall represent the defendant at all stages of the criminal process, from the time of 
appointment by the court as attorney of record through the appeals process (provided that 
funding for appeals beyond superior court shall be pursuant to the terms of Title 15 of the Rules 
of Appellate Procedure), as well as during any period in which the court retains jurisdiction over 
the terms and conditions of any sentence or deferral. 
 
IV.  APPEARANCES AT HEARINGS 
 
Contractor shall appear at all hearings scheduled by the court in which it represents defendants, 
as well as all arraignment calendars and all in-custody calendars, except first appearances.  
Contractor shall ensure that defendants have a sufficient amount of time to consult with the 
Contractor(’s) attorney(s) prior to each defendant’s case being heard. 
 
V.  REPRESENTATION OF DEFENDANTS WHILE ON THE RECORD 
 
Contractor shall be with and actively representing defendant at all times while defendant’s case 
is considered on the court record, and shall adequately inform the defendant of the developments 
in his or her case such that the defendant proceeds during any court hearing in a knowing, 
intelligent, and voluntary manner. 
 
VI.  DEFENDANT ACCESS TO CONTRACTOR 
 
A.  Contact Prior to Court Hearings.  Contractor shall be available to defendants to ensure that 
defendants are provided with effective assistance of counsel.  Defendant access to the Contractor 
prior to court hearings is paramount.  Contractor shall endeavor to confer with defendants about 
cases prior to court hearings. 
 

87 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 3 
 

B.  Toll Free Calls.  Defendants shall be provided access to the Contractor by means of a toll-free 
local call from a telephone number made available by the Contractor. 
 
C.  Time to Respond.  Contractor shall respond to defendant inquiries within a reasonable time to 
ensure the effective assistance of counsel, whether such inquiries are received by letter, 
telephone, email, or otherwise. 
 
D.  Local Office Required.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall 
maintain an office either within the city limits of the King County District Court, Auburn 
Division, and within approximately 7 miles of the City.  The office of the Contractor shall 
accommodate confidential  meetings with defendants, shall be equipped with telephone, 
facsimile, and internet services, shall receive adequate cellular telephone service, and shall be the 
location at which mail and service of process is received. 
 
E.  Availability for and Contact with In-Custody Defendants.  Contractor shall evaluate the cases 
of all defendants in the custody of the SCORE Corrections Facility as they relate to the City of 
Covington, and shall meet with in-custody defendants as the Contractor deems appropriate for 
providing effective assistance of counsel.   
 
VII.  QUALITY OF REPRESENTATION 
 
Contractor shall provide services in a professional and skilled manner consistent with 
Washington’s Rules of Professional Conduct, applicable case law, the Constitutions of the 
United States and Washington, and the court rules that define the duties of counsel and the rights 
of defendants.  Contractor shall be familiar with the Performance Guidelines for Criminal 
Defense Representation approved by the Washington State Bar Association on June 3, 2011.  At 
all times during the representation of a defendant, the Contractor’s primary responsibility shall 
be to protect the interests of the defendant. 
 
VIII.  QUALIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTOR ATTORNEYS – TRAINING 
 
A.  Qualifications.  All attorneys employed by Contractor for the purposes of providing the 
services called for in this contract shall, at a minimum, satisfy the minimum qualifications to 
practice law as established by the Washington Supreme Court; be familiar with and follow the 
statutes, court rules, case law and constitutional law applicable to misdemeanor criminal defense 
work in the state of Washington; be familiar with and abide by Washington’s Rules of 
Professional Conduct; be familiar with the Performance Guidelines for Criminal Defense 
Representation approved by the Washington State Bar Association on June 3, 2011; be familiar 
with the consequences to each particular defendant of any conviction or adjudication including 
but not limited to jail time, financial penalties, restitution, mental health or drug and alcohol 
treatment obligations, license suspensions, and immigration or civil commitment implications; be 
familiar with mental health and substance abuse issues applicable to each defendant; be able to 
recognize the need for expert services including but not limited to investigators; and be able to 
satisfy the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
B.  Training.  For each attorney of the Contractor, a minimum of 32 of the reportable continuing 
legal education credits per reporting period shall be in the areas of criminal defense law, criminal 
process, trial advocacy, legal writing, appellate work, law practice management, or any other 

88 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 4 
 

subject that, in the opinion of the Contractor, is applicable to providing criminal defense 
services. 
 
IX.  USE OF RULE 9 INTERNS 
 
A.  Workload of Rule 9 Interns.  Contactor may employ interns qualified under Admission to 
Practice Rule 9 who perform work pursuant to this Agreement.  Rule 9 interns shall remain 
under the supervision of the Contractor, and an attorney for Contractor shall remain responsible 
for the cases for which the Rule 9 provides services. 
 
B.  Qualifications OF Rule 9 Interns.  Rule 9 interns shall be required to abide by Sections VII 
and VIII except that Rule 9 interns shall not be required to complete the training requirements of 
Section VIII, and in place of the requirement to satisfy the minimum qualifications to practice 
law as established by the Washington Supreme Court, the Rule 9 intern must comply with the 
provisions of APR 9.  Rule 9 interns shall be closely monitored by the more senior attorneys of 
the Contractor. 
 
X  DISCOVERY TO BE PROVIDED  
 
The City shall provide Contractor one (1) copy of all discoverable material concerning each 
assigned case. 
 
XI.  NUMBER OF ATTORNEYS EMPLOYED 
 
At the time of signing this Agreement, Contractor employs one full time attorney to fulfill the 
terms and obligations of this contract.  Contractor shall provide no less than the number of 
fulltime equivalent positions so as not to exceed the caseload limitations provided for in this 
Agreement. 
 
XII.  CASELOAD LIMITS PER FULLTIME EQUIVALENT POSITION 
 
A.  Caseload Limits in General.  Contractor shall maintain a caseload such that it can provide 
each and every defendant effective assistance of counsel as required by this Agreement.  Subject 
to the remaining subsections of this section, a fulltime equivalent attorney position shall be 
appointed to no more than 400 cases per year, or an amount as permitted by CrRLJ 3.1.  
 
B.  Case Defined.  For the purposes of this section, the term “case” shall mean a group of 
criminal charges related to a single incident filed against a defendant to which the attorney is 
appointed by the court, but shall not include temporary or provisional appointments at 
arraignments or in-custody hearings, appointments by a court at a court hearing for that one court 
hearing only, and shall not include pre-filing representation provided to a suspect who is under 
investigation for a violation of RCW 46.61.502, 46.61.503 or 46.61.504. 
 
XIII.  REFUSING APPOINTMENTS 
 
Caseload Monitoring.  Contractor shall continually monitor the caseload and performance of 
Contractor as a whole and each attorney providing services pursuant to this Agreement.   
 

89 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 5 
 

XIV.  EXPERTS AND INVESTIGATORS 
 
Contractor may retain experts and investigators of the Contractor’s choosing as deemed 
necessary to the effective defense of the defendant, and may apply to the court for such services 
pursuant to applicable court rules.  Court approved fees for expert witnesses and services shall be 
paid by the City in addition to costs and expenses identified in Compensation section below. 
 
XV.  COSTS OF TRANSCRIPTION  
 
The City agrees to reimburse the Contractor for all reasonable costs associated with obtaining 
and transcribing trial court records for appeal purposes if such costs have not been waived. 
 
XVI.  CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
Contractor shall maintain a database of client information sufficient for the Contractor to 
determine the existence of any conflicts of interest.  In the event representation of a defendant 
would constitute a conflict of interest, Contractor shall take such action as is appropriate 
pursuant to the Rules of Professional Conduct.  In the event the Contractor is disqualified or 
excused as counsel of record due to a conflict of interest, Contractor shall not be required to pay 
any compensation to another attorney assigned to represent the defendant. 
 
XVII.  INTERNAL PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND ATTORNEY SUPERVISION 
 
A.  Performance Monitoring In General.  Contractor shall establish a program for managing the 
performance of attorneys who provide the services called for in this Agreement.  The 
performance monitoring program shall have the purpose of ensuring that each defendant receives 
effective assistance of counsel, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement are met.  The 
monitoring program shall be developed and administered by the Contractor, and shall: 
 
 1.  Be actively performed and managed by a partner-level attorney of the Contractor; 
 

2.  Be continual in nature.  Monitoring shall occur no less than quarterly; provided, 
caseload monitoring shall occur no less than weekly; 

 
3.  Monitor the caseload of the Contractor and each attorney providing services pursuant 
to this Agreement; 

 
4.  Monitor the performance of each employee who provides services pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

 
5.  Hold employees accountable for deficient performance of the services called for in 
this Agreement; 

 
6.  Have measures to correct the deficient performance of employees performing under 
this Agreement; and 

 
7.  Contain measures to develop and improve the performance of each employee        
providing services pursuant to this Agreement.) 

90 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 6 
 

 
B.  Monitoring Program – Scope of Review.  The monitoring program shall, at a minimum, be 
designed to review the following of each attorney or Rule 9 intern: 
 
 1.  Knowledge of the law and expectations of criminal defense counsel 
 
 2.  Preparation of cases 
 
 3.  Responsiveness to clients 
 
 4.  Effectiveness of in-court interactions with clients 
 
 5.  Effectiveness in the courtroom 
 
 6.  Negotiation skills and strategy 
 
 7.  Attorney or Rule 9 caseload 
 
 
XVIII.  REMOVAL OF ATTORNEY 
 
A.  Removal by Contractor.  In the event Contractor determines, through its internal performance 
monitoring and attorney supervision program that an attorney or Rule 9 intern working for 
Contractor fails to comply with the terms of this Agreement, then Contractor shall immediately 
take action to prevent that attorney or Rule 9 from providing the services called for in this 
Agreement. 
 
B.  Recommendation of Removal by City.  In the event the City determines that an attorney 
working for the Contractor has breached this Agreement, the City may, at its sole discretion and 
as an alternative to termination of this Agreement, require Contractor to take action to prevent 
that attorney from providing the services called for in this Agreement. 
 
XIX.  REPORTS OF CONTRACTOR 
 
Contractor shall maintain a case reporting and case management information system, and shall 
submit reports to the City upon demand. 
 
B.  Reports shall contain the following information: 
 
 1.  Number of cases to which Contractor was appointed 
 
 2.  The names of defendants to which Contractor was appointed 
  
 3.  The case number 
 
 4.  The date of appointment 
 
 5.  The charge(s) filed against the defendant 

91 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 7 
 

 
 6.  The number of appellate level cases pending 
 
C.  Contactor shall not be required to compromise any attorney-client privilege when providing 
these reports. 
 
XX.  TERMINATION 
 
A.  For Cause.  The City or the Contractor may terminate this Agreement immediately in the 
event the other party breaches the Agreement and such breach is not corrected to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the injured party in a timely manner after notice of breach has been provided to 
the other party. Each and every term of this Agreement is material.  The failure of any party to 
comply with any term of this Agreement shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. 
 
B.  For Reasons Beyond Control of Parties.  Either party may terminate this Agreement without 
recourse by the other where performance is rendered impossible or impracticable for reasons 
beyond such party’s reasonable control such as, but not limited to acts of nature; war or warlike 
operations; civil commotion; riot; labor dispute including strike, walkout, or lockout; sabotage; 
or superior governmental regulation or control. 
 
C.  Without Cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time without cause upon 
giving the non-terminating party not less than ninety (90) days prior written notice. 
 
XXI.  CONTINUATION OF REPRESENTATION AFTER TERMINATION 
 
In the event of termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall continue representation of 
defendants to whom Contractor was assigned prior to the termination until such time as another 
defender has been appointed to represent such defendants.  Except in cases in which the 
Contractor is unable to provide services in conformance with this Agreement, Contractor shall 
not submit to the court a motion to withdraw from representing defendants to which the 
Contractor was assigned until such time as new counsel has submitted a motion to substitute 
counsel. 
 
XXII.  NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 
Contractor shall not discriminate in the hiring of employees or the provision of services pursuant 
to a contract with the City. 
 
XXIII.  PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance of the types 
and in the amounts described below: 
 
 A.  Minimum Scope of Insurance: 
 
 1.  The minimum amount of insurance required by Chapter 46.29 RCW for automobiles 
covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased vehicles. 
 

92 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 8 
 

 2.  Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 
00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors and 
personal injury and advertising injury. 
 
 3.  Worker’s Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the 
State of Washington. 
 
 4.  Professional liability insurance appropriate to Public Defender’s profession. 
 
 B.  Minimum Amounts of Insurance: 
 
 1.  Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 
 
 2.  Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 
XXIV.  INDEMNIFICATION 
 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, and 
employees harmless from any and all claims whatsoever related to or arising from the 
performance of the Contractor’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement, including but not 
limited to claims arising out of the errors and omissions of the Contractor relating to the 
representation or lack of representation of clients, and/or by reason of accident, injury, or death 
caused to any persons or property of any kind occurring during the performance or lack thereof 
of the work required by this Agreement, or traveling to or from any place to perform the work 
required by this Agreement, except to the extent they are caused by the sole negligence of the 
City  The failure of the Contractor to carry insurance in a quantity sufficient to defend a claim or 
lawsuit or cover any judgment that results shall not operate to limit the Contractor’s 
indemnification or defense of the City.  This indemnification section shall survive the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement. 
 
XXV.  COMPENSATION 
 
A.  Payment for Services.  The City shall provide to Contractor for services rendered under this 
Agreement the sum of FOUR THOUSAND ($4,000.00) per month from January 1, 2016 through 
the final day of December, 2016, FOUR THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY 
($4,250.00) per month from January 1, 2017 through the final day of December, 2017, and 
FOUR THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED ($4,500.00) per month from January 1, 2018 through the 
final day of December, 2018.  Additionally, the City shall pay $350.00 per jury trial, $500.00 per 
Appeal, and $250.00 per case for every case exceeding 200 within any given year.  Attorney 
shall bill the City each month for services rendered herein.  In the event this Agreement is 
terminated pursuant to the provisions set forth in this Agreement, the Contractor’s compensation 
shall be prorated based upon the number of months and portions of months which have elapsed 
between the commencement of the year and the effective date of termination. 
 

93 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 9 
 

B.  Billing.  The Contractor shall bill the City, in care of the City’s Accounts Payable Division, 
on the first week of the month for the monthly installment, and any transcription costs as 
permitted by this Agreement. 
 
C.  Payment.  The City shall make payments within 30 days of receipt of Contractors bill.  
Except as provided elsewhere in this Agreement, the payment set forth in this section shall be 
inclusive of administrative costs, support costs, and all costs associated with the conduct of the 
Contractor’s business. 
 
XXVI.  ASSIGNMENT PROHIBITED 
 
No assignment or transfer of this Agreement or of any interest in this Agreement shall be made 
by either of the parties, without prior written consent of the non-assigning party. 
 
XXVII.  AGREEMENT APPLICABLE TO ALL EMPLOYEES AND VOLUNTEERS 
 
The terms of this Agreement shall apply to all persons who are employed by, or who volunteer 
for, the Contractor, including but not limited to attorneys, interns, paralegals, office assistants, 
secretaries, and investigators. 
 
XXVIII.  STATUS OF CONTRACTOR AS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND NOT                                
EMPLOYEE 
 
This Agreement calls for the performance of the services of the Contractor as an independent 
contractor and Contractor will not be considered an employee of the City for any purpose.  
Contractor shall secure at its own expense and be responsible for any and all payment of income 
tax, social security, state disability insurance compensation, unemployment compensation, 
worker’s compensation, and all other payroll deductions for the Contractor and its officers, 
agents, and employees and the costs of all professional or business licenses in connection with 
the services to be performed hereunder.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for any and all 
claims or lawsuits filed against Contractor by personnel employed by the Attorney related to the 
conditions or terms of employment by the Contractor, and the Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the City and its employees and officers from any such claims or 
lawsuits.  Contractor further agrees that its employees are not considered employees of the City 
for the purposes of participating in any state or federal program, including but not limited to the 
retirement program provided by the Washington Department of Retirement Services, and in the 
event that a claim is made to the contrary by any employee or volunteer of the Contractor, 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify, ad hold harmless the City and its employees and officers 
from any such claims or lawsuits and shall pay all awards ordered against the City for such 
claims or lawsuits. 
 
XXIX.  ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
Contractor may be requested to perform additional services beyond the original scope of services 
as defined in section 1 of this Agreement.  Such work will be undertaken only upon written 
authorization of the City based upon an agreed amount of compensation. 
 
 

94 of 119



AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES                                 10 
 

XXX.  NOTICES 
 
All notices and other written documentation shall be sent to the parties at the following addresses 
unless otherwise requested in writing: 
 
 City of Covington:     Contractor: 
 Regan Bolli, City Manager    Michael G. Bejarano 
 City of Covington     Cordi & Bejarano, Inc., P.S. 
 16720 SE 271st Street, Ste. 100   1020 “A” St. SE, Ste. 7 
 Covington, WA 98042    Auburn, WA 98002 
 
XXXI.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT – AMENDMENTS 
 
This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties for the contemplated work 
and services to commence January 1, 2016, and it may not be enlarged, modified, altered, or 
amended except in writing signed and endorsed by the parties. 
 
XXXII.  EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
The terms of this Agreement shall take effect on January 1, 2016. 
 
 CITY:       ATTORNEY: 
 City of Covington     Cordi & Bejarano, Inc., P.S. 
 
 
 
 ____________________________   ______________________________ 
 Print Name:__________________   Print Name:____________________ 
 Title:_______________________   Title:_________________________ 
 Dated:______________________   Dated:________________________ 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 ____________________________ 
 _____________________, City Clerk 
  

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 ____________________________  
 

 

95 of 119



 Consent Agenda Item C-7 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 26, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER AUTHORIZING REPLACEMENT FUNDS TO BE EXPENDED 

FOR ONE NEW VEHICLE AND KEEP #3383 IN THE FLEET. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1.  New/Replacement Vehicle Request Form (Attachment E – Fleet Policy) 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ross Junkin, Maintenance Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Staff is seeking council’s approval to purchase one vehicle per the city’s Fleet Management 
Policy, Section 11. 
 
The city currently owns the following vehicle: 
 Asset #3383 – 2005 Ford F250 pickup (VIN 1FTSX2051ED27397 )  

 
Staff is seeking council authorization to use the replacement funds for vehicle #3383 to purchase 
a new flatbed dump truck that will greatly increase the usefulness of this Maintenance (Parks) 
assigned truck. 
 
Staff also seeks authority to keep vehicle #3383 (2005 Ford 250) pickup in the fleet.  This truck 
will continue to be assigned to Parks Maintenance.  In 2015 we hired one (9 month) Parks 
seasonal employee to assist in Parks Maintenance.  Having two vehicles assigned to Parks 
Maintenance will greatly improve efficiency as the two Parks Maintenance employees will no 
longer need to take multiple trips to transport the mowers, gator, and other equipment to the 
parks.  It would also allow the two parks assigned employees to be in separate locations rather 
than always needing to travel together.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
1. Not keep vehicle #3383 in the fleet and surplus it. 
2. Not use existing replacement funds to purchase a new vehicle that will better serve the 

Maintenance Division (Parks) and keep vehicle #3383. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Replacement funds for vehicle #3383 coupled with the funds approved in a 2016 decision card 
will be used to purchase a new flatbed dump truck for Parks Maintenance operations.  
 
The new vehicle is scheduled to be a 2016 Ford F550 Flatbed Dump, four-wheel drive, crew cab.  
The new vehicle will be purchased through a state joint purchasing contract for $59,800.00 
Available funds for purchasing this truck include: 

• Asset #3383 – 2005 Ford F250 currently has $22,507.53 set aside for replacement. 
• 2016 Decision Card approved $37,500 additional funds for this vehicle replacement. 
• Ongoing replacement funds for newly purchased flatbed dump. 

96 of 119



 
Keeping vehicle #3383 in the fleet will have a small impact on the current budget but will have 
significant benefits in efficiency and flexibility.  Replacement funds for #3383 (old vehicle) can 
be reevaluated and considered in future budget cycles.  The impact on the budget for keeping this 
vehicle in the fleet will impact the budget as follows: 

• $2,000/year for fuel, maintenance, and repairs. 
 
Just to clarify, the new vehicle has ongoing replacement funds included for future budgets 
(standard procedure).  The existing (#3383) vehicle that we are requesting that we keep in the 
fleet and not surplus will no longer have ongoing replacement funds at this time. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance           Resolution        X     Motion   _____Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember________________ 
seconds, to authorize replacement funds to be used to purchase a new vehicle 
and to keep vehicle #3383 in the fleet. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director 

97 of 119



ATTACHMENT 1

98 of 119



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 26, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO COVINGTON’S MUNICIPAL CODE 

(CMC) TITLE 8 AND 18 RELATING TO USE, STORAGE, SETBACKS, 
SCREENING, AND PERMITTING OF RECREATIONAL VEHICLES (RVS) IN 
RESIDENTIAL ZONES.   

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Planning Commission 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Ordinance adopting amendments to CMC Titles 8 and 18 relating to use, storage, 

setbacks, screening and permitting of recreational vehicles in residential zones 
2. Exhibit A: Proposed Zoning Code Amendments for use, storage, setbacks, screening, and 

permitting of recreational vehicles in residential zones 
3. Typical layout and placement for storage of recreational vehicles on residential lots 

 
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Director of Community Development 

  Brian Bykonen, Associate Planner & Code Enforcement Officer 
 

EXPLANATION: 
 
Background 
At the request of the city council, as part of the 2015 planning commission work program, the city’s 
staff and planning commission reviewed current CMC regulations governing use, storage, setbacks, 
and screening of recreational vehicles (RVs).  
 
The city’s current RV regulations are minimal and unclear about the use and storage of RVs.  This 
has presented problems when people want to occupy RVs for temporary purposes, often while 
family members visit.  Many of our regulations are left over from King County regulations adopted 
when the city incorporated in 1997 and have not been comprehensively evaluated and updated in 
that ensuing 18 years.  In addition, storage of many RVs in residential neighborhoods has become a 
common code enforcement complaint.   
 
This issue can affect the livability and quality of neighborhoods, depending upon the lot size and 
density of the neighborhood, the number of RVs stored on a lot, and the length of time a visiting 
individual wants to park and live in an RV.  Adjusting our code in these areas will improve our code 
enforcement administration and hopefully reduce complaints caused by storage of RVs in front and 
side yards.       
 
Proposed Code Amendment Summary Highlights for Recreational Vehicles 
Highlighted below is a summary of the CMC provisions staff and the planning commission 
recommend to amend: (See Attachment 2 for the specific recommended amendments)      
 
 
 
 

99 of 119



1. CMC 8.10.010 Defining nuisance vehicles and providing for their removal. 
2. CMC 8.10.020 (2) Adding damaged and inoperable recreational vehicles to the nuisance 

vehicle category. 
3. CMC 8.10.050 (1) Prohibiting for abatement of nuisance vehicles, including recreational 

vehicles. 
4. CMC 18.20.060 Adding camping trailers, camper vans and tent vehicles to the definition of 

recreational vehicles. 
5. CMC 18.50.190 Providing for new regulations governing the parking, storage and habitation 

of recreational vehicles, issuance of a temporary use permit for said habitation, and 
screening requirements for storage of recreational vehicles in side or rear yards.  

6. CMC 18.85.110 and 120 Adding provisions for temporary use permits for recreational 
vehicles.    

Attachment 3 is a sample diagram depicting the proposed CMC amendments regarding RVs.  This 
diagram shall not be adopted as part of the CMC and shall not be used to determine compliance 
with the CMC.  
 
Review Process 
A SEPA Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for the proposed code amendments was issued 
on September 11, 2015, and no comments or appeals were received on the amendments from other 
state or local agencies, or the public.  The State Department of Commerce was also notified for their 
60-day state required review of local ordinance changes on August 13, 2015.  
   
The planning commission discussed the proposed CMC amendments at public meetings on July 16 
and August 6, 2015.  The commission held their required public hearing on September 17, 2015, 
and no one testified or offered comments.  The commission took final action with a 
recommendation to the council on November 5, 2015.       
 
At tonight’s city council meeting, council members will review, discuss, and consider the planning 
commission’s recommendation and proposed amendments to the CMC.  The council may approve 
and adopt the amendments as provided in Attachment 2, modify the commission recommendation, 
or refer the regulations back to the commission and staff for further study.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Recommend amendments to the proposed ordinance.  
2. Return the issue to city staff and the planning commission for further study and analysis. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None, outside of the minimal staff time to administer and enforce the regulations after adoption.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    X     Ordinance       Resolution         Motion         Other 
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member _______________ 
seconds, to pass an Ordinance, in substantial form as attached hereto, to amend 
portions of Title 8 and 18 of the Covington Municipal Code relating to use, 
storage, setbacks, and screening of recreational vehicles in residential zones.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Finance Director; City Attorney. 

100 of 119



ORDINANCE NO. 05-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AMENDING THOSE PORTIONS OF THE COVINGTON 
MUNICIPAL CODE (CMC) CHAPTERS 8.10, 8.20, 8.30, AND 
CHAPTERS 18.50 AND 18.85, ALL RELATING TO THE USE,  
STORAGE, SETBACK,  SCREENING, AND PERMITTING 
REQUIREMENTS FOR RECREATIONAL VEHICLES (RVS); 
PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS AND SEVERABILITY; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, Chapter 35A.63 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) empowers the 
City of Covington to enact land use and zoning regulations, including use, storage, setback, 
screening, and permitting of recreational vehicles in residential zones; and  

WHEREAS, city staff transmitted the proposed amendments to the Covington zoning 
regulations governing the use, storage, setback, screening, and permitting requirements for 
recreational vehicles (RVs) to the Washington State Department of Commerce on August 13, 
2015, as required under RCW 36.70A.106, and has received no comments from state agencies; 
and 

WHEREAS, the city’s SEPA Official conducted a SEPA review and issued a 
Determination of Non-Significance on September 11, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, amendments to Covington’s zoning regulations for use, storage, setback, 
screening, and permitting of recreational vehicles were discussed by the planning commission at 
their September 17, 2015 and November 5, 2015 meetings; and   

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2015, the planning commission held a duly noticed public 
hearing and considered the amendments to the zoning regulations for recreational vehicles and 
forwarded a recommendation to approve to the city council on November 19, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments are consistent with the goals, objectives, and 
policies of the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments make Covington’s regulations of recreational 
vehicles more consistent with surrounding jurisdictions; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments serve to clean up inconsistencies and outdated 
provisions from the originally adopted King County zoning code adopted upon incorporation of 
the city; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments provide a somewhat more restrictive approach to 
use and storage of recreational vehicles to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare 
on residential lots; and   

ATTACHMENT 1

101 of 119



 
WHEREAS, the city council, upon review of the facts, findings and recommendations of 

the planning commission and after reviewing information provided by city staff, find that all 
applicable and substantive requirements of the law have been met, that the adoption of this 
ordinance promotes the public health, safety and general welfare of the community, and that the 
adoption of this ordinance serves the public interest.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  CMC Chapters 8.10, 8.20, 8.30, 18.50, and 18.85 are hereby amended as set 
forth in the attached Exhibit A, incorporated fully herein by this reference. 
  
 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after publication in 
the city’s newspaper of record.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of 
publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 
 
 Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

Section 4. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk is authorized to make 
necessary corrections to this ordinance, including the correction of clerical errors; references to 
other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or section/subsection numbering. 
 
Passed by the City Council on the 26th day of January, 2016, and signed in authentication 
thereof. 

 
_______________________                      
Mayor Jeff Wagner 

     
PUBLISHED:  January 29, 2016 
EFFECTIVE:   February 3, 2016 

ATTESTED: 
 
                                          
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

102 of 119



CMC Chapter 8.10 
ABATEMENT OF JUNK  NUISANCE VEHICLES AND VEHICLE STORAGE 

Sections: 

Article I. Junk Vehicles 

8.10.010    Purpose. 
8.10.020    Definitions. 
8.10.030    Certification. 
8.10.040    Exemptions. 
8.10.050    Abatement of Nuisance Vehicles.Junk vehicle violation – Remedy. 

Article II. Vehicle Storage 

8.10.060    Storage of certain vehicles and components prohibited. 
8.10.070    Exceptions. 
8.10.080    Vehicle storage violation – Penalty. 
8.10.0960    Third party liability. 

Article I. Junk Vehicles 

8.10.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of this chapter is to preserve the character and safety of the city’s neighborhoods by 
eliminating junk nuisance vehicles and improperly stored vehicles as nuisances from private property, 
and to provide procedures for the removal of junk nuisance vehicles and improperly stored vehicles as 
authorized by RCW 46.55.240.  

8.10.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter the following words shall have the following meanings: 

(1) “Code compliance enforcement officer” means a code enforcement officer, the director of planning
and community development, or the director of community development’s designee.

(2) “Junk motor vehicle” means any vehicle substantially meeting three of the following requirements:

(a) Is extensively damaged, such damage including, but not limited to, broken windshields, missing
wheels, tires, motor or transmission;

(b) Is apparently inoperable;

(c) Is without a valid current license plate and tabs;

(d) Has an approximate fair market value equivalent only to the approximate value of the scrap in it.

ORDINANCE NO. 05-2016 
EXHIBIT A

ATTACHMENT 2

103 of 119



(2) “Nuisance vehicle” means and includes any car, truck, motorcycle, boat, trailer, recreational vehicle 
(RV), self-propelled construction equipment or heavy machinery, or any other motorized or non-
motorized means of conveyance, or any part thereof, and which: 

(a)  Meets any one of the following criteria: 

(i) Is extensively damaged, such damage including, but not limited to, any of the following: a 
broken window or windshield or missing wheels, tires, motor, or transmission; 

(ii) Is apparently inoperable; 

(iii) Has an approximate fair market value equal only to the approximate value of the scrap in it; 
and 

(b) Is not validly licensed and/or registered under the laws of the state of Washington. 

(3) “Owner” or “property owner of record” means any person owning property as shown on the real 
property records of King County or on the last assessment roll for taxes, and shall also mean any lessee, 
tenant or other person having control or possession of the property. 

(4) “Property” means land and any buildings or structures located thereon. 

(5) “Vehicle” has the same definition as the definition of “vehicle” in RCW 46.04.670. 

(5) “Recreational vehicle” means a camping trailer, travel trailer, motor home, truck camper and any 
similar vehicular-type units primarily designed as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping or 
travel use, with or without motor power, being of such size and weight as to be operable over highways 
without requirement of a special highway movement permit. (Ord. 22-01 § 1; Ord. 79-98 § 1) 

8.10.030 Certification. 

The code compliance enforcement officer may inspect and certify, to the best of his or her knowledge, 
that a vehicle meets the requirements of a junk motor nuisance vehicle. Such certification shall be in 
writing and shall record the make of the vehicle, the vehicle identification number, and the license plate 
number of the vehicle, if available. The code compliance enforcement officer shall also describe in detail 
at least three (3) of the following: 

(1) The model year and age of the vehicle; 

(2) The damaged or missing equipment or condition of the vehicle; 

(3) The factors supporting a determination that the vehicle is apparently inoperable; 

(4) The absence of a valid, current license plate; and 

(5) The approximate fair market value of the vehicle and the value of the scrap in it. (Ord. 22-01 § 1; Ord. 
79-98 § 1) 

104 of 119



8.10.040 Exemptions. 

The provisions of this chapter relating to junk nuisance vehicles shall not apply to the following: 

(1) A vehicle or part thereof which is completely enclosed within a building in a lawful manner where it 
is not visible from the street or other public or private property; or 

(2) A vehicle or part thereof which is stored or parked in a lawful manner on private property in 
connection with the business of a licensed dismantler or licensed vehicle dealer and is fenced according 
to the provisions of RCW 46.80.130. (Ord. 22-01 § 1; Ord. 79-98 § 1) 

8.10.050 Junk Abatement of nuisance vehicles– Remedy. 

(1) Unless exempted under CMC 8.10.040, it shall be a violation of this chapter and a public nuisance to 
park, store, or abandon junk nuisance vehicles on private property. all nuisance vehicles placed or 
situated upon private property within Covington city limits are public nuisances to be abated and shall 
be subject to the penalties and enforcement remedies as set forth in Chapter 1.30 CMC.  

(2) If the city determines that such a violation has occurred or is occurring, the city shall remedy abate 
said violation in accordance with the civil code enforcement procedures established in Chapter 1.30 
CMC; except that the last registered and legal owner(s) of the junk nuisance vehicle and the property 
owner of record shall be given any notice required by Chapter 1.30 CMC. Said notice need not be 
provided to the last registered and legal owner(s) of the nuisance vehicle if the vehicle is in such 
condition that the identification numbers cannot be readily determined or if the property owner has 
prevented access to the vehicle.  

(3) If the city invokes CMC 1.30.080 170 and abates the  junk nuisance vehicle(s), the vehicle(s) or part(s) 
thereof shall be removed by a licensed tow truck operator or hulk hauler. The code compliance 
enforcement officer shall give notice to the Washington State Patrol and to the Washington State 
Department of Licensing that the vehicle has been wrecked.  

(4) Pursuant to CMC 1.30.080 170, the costs and expenses of correcting abating the violation shall be 
assessed against the last registered owner of the nuisance vehicle and/or the property owner of record.; 
except that the owner of the property on which the vehicle is located may appear in person at the 
hearing provided for in CMC 1.30.070, or present a written statement in time for consideration at said 
hearing, denying responsibility for the presence of the nuisance vehicle, with his/her reasons for the 
denial. If it is determined at the hearing that the nuisance vehicle was placed on the property without 
the consent of the owner and that he/she has not subsequently acquiesced in its placement, then the 
city shall not assess the costs and expenses of correcting the violation against the property upon which 
the vehicle or item is located or otherwise attempt to collect said costs and expenses from the owner. 
(Ord. 22-01 § 1; Ord. 79-98 § 1) 

(5) This section shall apply even in cases where the owner has given permission for the vehicle to be left 
on the property.  

Article II. Vehicle Storage 

105 of 119



8.10.060 Storage of certain vehicles and components prohibited. 

No person owning, leasing, renting, occupying, being in possession of or having charge of any property 
in the city, including vacant lots, shall retain or store, except as may be permitted by any other city 
ordinance, any of the following: 

(1) One or more wrecked, dismantled or partially dismantled, inoperative, or unlicensed (vehicle 
licensing plates and current tabs) and uninsured vehicles; 

(2) Body parts, engines or drive-train parts, or any other parts, assemblies or components of 
automobiles and other motor vehicles; 

(3) Any recreational vehicle, boat or trailer within the required front yard setback area unless parked 
and/or stored within a driveway in the front setback area; 

(4) Any pickup truck campers or canopies (not mounted on a pickup truck) within the required front yard 
setback area unless parked and/or stored within a driveway in the front setback area. (Ord. 22-01 § 1; 
Ord. 79-98 § 1) 

8.10.070 Exceptions. 

The provisions of CMC 8.10.060 shall not apply to the following: 

(1) A vehicle, recreational vehicle, boat, trailer, or component thereof which is completely enclosed 
within a building in lawful manner where it is not visible from the street or other public or private 
property; or 

(2) A vehicle, recreational vehicle, boat, trailer, or component thereof which is stored or parked in a 
lawful manner on private property in connection with the business of a licensed dismantler or licensed 
vehicle dealer and is fenced according to the provisions of RCW 46.80.130. (Ord. 22-01 § 1; Ord. 79-98 
§ 1) 

8.10.080 Vehicle storage violation – Penalty. 

(1) Unless exempted under CMC 8.10.070, it shall be a violation of this chapter to retain or store any 
vehicle or component thereof described in CMC 8.10.060 in violation of said section. 

(2) If the city determines that such a violation has occurred or is occurring, the city shall remedy said 
violation in accordance with the civil code enforcement procedures established in Chapter 1.30 CMC; 
except that the last registered owner of the vehicle/component and the property owner of record shall 
be given any notice required by Chapter 1.30 CMC. Said notice need not be provided to the last 
registered owner of the vehicle/component if the vehicle is in such condition that the identification 
numbers cannot be readily determined or if the property owner has prevented access to the vehicle.  

(3) If the city invokes CMC 1.30.080 and abates the vehicle(s)/component(s) retained or stored in 
violation of CMC 8.10.060, the vehicle(s)/component(s) shall be removed by a licensed tow truck 

106 of 119

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving08/Coving0810.html#8.10.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving08/Coving0810.html#8.10.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving08/Coving0810.html#8.10.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving01/Coving0130.html#1.30
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving01/Coving0130.html#1.30
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving01/Coving0130.html#1.30.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving08/Coving0810.html#8.10.060


operator or hulk hauler. The code compliance officer shall give notice to the Washington State Patrol 
and to the Washington State Department of Licensing that the vehicle has been wrecked.  

(4) Pursuant to CMC 1.30.080, the costs and expenses of correcting the violation shall be assessed 
against the last registered owner of the vehicle and/or the real property owner of record; except that 
the owner of the real property on which the vehicle is located may appear in person at the hearing 
provided for in CMC 1.30.070 or present a written statement in time for consideration at said hearing, 
denying responsibility for the presence of the vehicle on the property, with his/her reasons for the 
denial. If it is determined at the hearing that the vehicle was placed on the property without the consent 
of the owner and that he has not subsequently acquiesced in its placement, then the city shall not 
assess the costs and expenses of correcting the violation against the property upon which the vehicle or 
item is located or otherwise attempt to collect said costs and expenses from the owner. (Ord. 22-01 § 1; 
Ord. 79-98 § 1) 

8.10.0960 Third party liability. 

(1) It is expressly the purpose of this chapter to provide for and promote the health, safety and welfare 
of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular class or group 
of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this chapter. 

(2) It is the specific intent of this chapter to place the obligation of complying with its requirements upon 
the registered owner and property owner of record, and no provisions or term used in this chapter is 
intended to impose any duty whatsoever upon the city or any of its officers and employees, for whom 
the implementation or enforcement of this chapter shall be discretionary and not mandatory. 

(3) Nothing contained in this chapter is intended to be, nor shall be, construed to create or form the 
basis for any liability on the part of the city, or its officers, employees or agents, for any injury or damage 
resulting from the failure of a property owner or registered owner to comply with the provisions of this 
chapter, or by reason or in consequence of any inspection, notice, order, certificate, permission or 
approval authorized or issued or done in connection with the implementation or enforcement of this 
chapter, or by reason of any action or inaction on the part of the city related in any manner to the 
enforcement of this chapter by its officers, employees or agents. (Ord. 22-01 § 1; Ord. 79-98 § 1) 

  

107 of 119

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving01/Coving0130.html#1.30.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving01/Coving0130.html#1.30.070


Chapter 8.30 
NUISANCES 

8.30.030 Nuisances declared. 

The following specific acts, omissions, places and conditions are declared to be public nuisances: 

(1) Erecting, continuing or using any building or other place in the city for the exercise of any trade, 
employment or manufacturing operation, which by occasioning noxious exhalation, offensive smells or 
other annoyances, becomes injurious and dangerous to the health, comfort or property of individuals or 
the public; 

(2) Keeping or maintaining any dangerous, decaying, falling, or damaged dwelling, or other structure; 

(3) Keeping, using or maintaining any pen, stable, lot, place or premises in which any animal may be 
confined or kept, in such a manner to be noxious, foul or offensive to individuals or the public; 

(4) Obstructing or encroaching upon or rendering unsafe for passage any public highway, private street, 
street, alley, sidewalk, crossing, park, square, driveway, lake, or stream in the city; provided, that this 
subsection shall not apply to events, parades, or the use of the streets or public rights-of-way when 
authorized by the city; 

(5) Making or keeping any explosive or combustible substance in the city, or carrying it through the 
streets thereof, in a quantity or manner prohibited by Chapter 70.74 RCW; 

(6) Placing, depositing, keeping, having or leaving in or upon any private lot, building, structure or 
premises or in or upon any street, avenue, park, sidewalk, waterway, parkway or public or private place 
in the city any one or more of the following conditions, places or things: 

(a) Any putrid, unhealthy or unwholesome bones, meat, hides, skins, or the whole or any part of any 
dead animal, fish or fowl, or waste parts of fish, vegetable or animal matter in any quantity; but nothing 
herein shall prevent the temporary retention of waste in approved covered receptacles; 

(b) Privies, vaults, drains, sewer and septic tanks, cesspools, sumps, pits or like places which are not 
securely protected from flies or rats, or which are noxious, foul, malodorous or injurious to the public 
health; 

(c) Vegetation which constitutes a fire hazard or a health hazard; 

(d) Refuse or feces which constitute a health hazard; 

(e) Vegetation which overhangs a street, sidewalk or alley in such a way as to impede the free and full 
use of said street, sidewalk or alley, and vegetation which obstructs the vision of drivers such that traffic 
regulation signs or view of an intersection is obstructed from a position of 30 feet or closer to the 
intersection, and vegetation which creates injury to or other opportunity or risk of injury to passersby of 
the general public; 

108 of 119



(f) Animal manure in any quantity which is not securely protected from flies and/or the elements, or 
which is kept or handled in violation of any ordinances of the city; 

(g) An accumulation of material, including but not limited to tin cans, bottles, glass, plastic, scrap metal, 
ashes, wire, bric-a-brac, broken crockery, broken glass, broken plaster, trash, litter, weeds, grass, rags, 
garbage, accumulations of empty barrels, boxes, crates, packing cases, mattresses, bedding, excelsior, 
packing straw, or other packing materials or building materials which are not properly stored or neatly 
piled, and all such trash or abandoned material unless the same be kept in covered bins or galvanized 
iron receptacles approved by the enforcement officer; provided, however, this section shall exclude 
residential composting piles not greater than 25 square yards in area; 

(h) Broken or discarded furniture, furnishings, appliances, household equipment and other similar items, 
in any front yard, back yard, side yard or vacant lot; 

(i) Any abandoned, unattended or discarded icebox, refrigerator, freezer or other container having an 
air-tight door or lid and a snap lock or other locking device which may not be easily released from the 
inside when such lid or door is in a closed position; 

(j) In a place accessible to children, any attractive nuisance dangerous to children, including but not 
limited to any abandoned, broken or neglected equipment, machinery, refrigerator, freezer or other 
large appliance; 

(k) Any abandoned or unused well, pit, shaft, cistern, or storage tank without first demolishing or 
removing from the premises such storage tanks, or securely closing and barring any entrance or 
trapdoor thereto, or without filling any well, pit, shaft or cistern or capping the same with sufficient 
security to prevent access thereto; 

(l) Nonoperational or abandoned vehicles or parts thereof, or other articles of personal property that 
are discarded or left in a state of partial construction or repair in any front yard, side yard, rear yard, or 
vacant lot. The responsible person may have on his or her premises, at any one time, only one (1) 
nonoperational or abandoned vehicle outside an enclosed building for a period not to exceed fourteen 
(14) days. 

  

109 of 119



Chapter 18.20 
TECHNICAL TERMS AND LAND USE DEFINITIONS 

18.20.960 Recreational vehicle (RV).  

“Recreational vehicle (RV)” means a motorized vehicle designed primarily for recreational camping, 
travel, or seasonal use which has its own motive power or is mounted on or towed by another vehicle, 
including but not limited to: 

(1) Travel trailers; 

(2) Folding cCamping trailers; 

(3) Park Tent trailers; 

(4) Truck campers; 

(5) Park trailer Camper vans; 

(6) Motor homes; and 

(7) Multi-use vehicle. (Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.06.960)) 

 

 

  

110 of 119



Chapter 18.50 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS—PARKING AND CIRCULATION 

18.50.010    Purpose. 
18.50.020    Authority and application. 
18.50.030    Computation of required off-street parking spaces. 
18.50.040    Shared parking requirements. 
18.50.050    Exceptions for community residential facilities (CRFs) and senior citizen assisted housing. 
18.50.060    Parking for the disabled. 
18.50.070    Loading space requirements. 
18.50.080    Stacking spaces and restrictions for drive-through facilities. 
18.50.090    Transit and rideshare provisions. 
18.50.100    Pedestrian and bicycle circulation and access. 
18.50.110    Off-street parking plan design standards. 
18.50.120    Off-street parking construction standards. 
18.50.130    Compact car allowance requirements. 
18.50.140    Internal circulation street standards. 
18.50.150    Trail improvements and connections. 
18.50.160    Electric vehicle charging station requirements – Downtown zones.  
18.50.170    Electric vehicle charging station requirements – R-18, MR, NC, CC, RCMU, and I zones. 

18.50.180    Electric vehicle charging station design standards. 
18.50.190    Recreational vehicles—Parking, storage, and habitation.  

 

18.50.190 Recreational vehicles—parking, storage, and habitation. 

(1) The parking or storage of recreational vehicles, except for loading and unloading activities completed 
within a three (3) day period within any given two (2) week period, is not permitted unless there is 
compliance with the following: 

(a) The recreational vehicle is housed within a vented garage or within a carport which is sight-
screened from abutting properties by solid board fencing or sight-obscuring landscaping at least six feet 
(6 ft) in height. 

(b) The recreational vehicle may be located within a side or rear yard if in compliance with 
setback requirements applicable to accessory structures and sight-screened from abutting properties by 
solid board fencing or sight-obscuring landscaping at least six feet (6 ft) in height. The recreational 
vehicle does not need to be parked on an approved impervious surface if parked within a side or rear 
yard. 

(c) If there is no reasonable access to a rear or side yard, one (1) recreational vehicle may be 
located in the front yard driveway as follows: 

(i) In the driveway perpendicular to the right-of-way, provided setback requirements 
applicable to the primary structure are met. 

111 of 119

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.130
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.140
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.150
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.160
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.170
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/html/Coving18/Coving1850.html#18.50.180


 

(ii) A recreational vehicle stored under this subsection (3)(c) must be licensed and 
operable. 

(2) For purposes of this section, all sides of a property which abut a right-of-way constitute a front yard. 

(3) It is a violation of this section to sleep in, or use for any other habitation or residential purposes, a 
recreation vehicle or boat parked, placed, or situated on private property for more than seven (7) days 
in any one hundred and eighty (180) day period, except as allowed by subsections 4, 5, and 6 of this 
section. Should there be any discrepancy between the provisions of subsections 4, 5, and 6 of this 
section and Chapter 18.85—Nonconformance, Temporary Uses, and Re-use of Facilities, the provisions 
of subsections 4, 5, and 6 of this section shall prevail.  

(4) One (1) recreational vehicle may be used as a temporary dwelling on a lot already containing another 
dwelling unit for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days upon issuance of a temporary use permit by the 
City pursuant to the provisions of this subsection and CMC 18.85.100.  

(a) The temporary use permit issued must be affixed to the recreational vehicle in such a 
manner that it is prominently displayed and visible, to the extent possible, from a public right-of-way. 

(b) Recreational vehicles meeting the requirements of this subsection may be parked within a 
front yard driveway, need not be sight-screened, and need not comply with accessory structure setback 
requirements for the effective period of the temporary use permit. 

(c) No more than one (1) temporary use permit may be granted for a given property within any 
six (6) month period. 

(5) As to recreational vehicles only, the requirements of this section shall not apply to a residence if one 
or more occupants thereof has a current windshield placard or special license plate issued to them by 
the State of Washington as a qualified disabled person in accordance with RCW 46.19.010. Persons 
claiming this exemption shall apply to the director for approval thereof. The director shall establish 
procedures and standards for acting on exemption requests hereunder. Only one (1) recreational vehicle 
per residence may be exempted under this provision.  

(6) Based on a written request, the director may permit a recreational vehicle of any size to be used as a 
temporary dwelling on a single-family residential lot where the primary dwelling unit is unsafe to occupy 
by reason of disaster or accident such as fire, wind, earthquake, or other similar circumstance, provided: 

(a) The recreational vehicle may be occupied for a maximum of twelve (12) months from the 
date the primary dwelling was damaged. One twelve (12)-month extension may be granted by the 
director based on demonstration of continuing hardship and documented good faith efforts to complete 
construction. 

(b) Occupancy of the recreational vehicle shall cease within thirty (30) days of issuance of a 
certificate of occupancy for reconstruction of the primary dwelling unit at the property. 

112 of 119



(c) The recreational vehicle may be located within the required front yard setback but may not 
obstruct sight distance at driveways and intersections. The recreational vehicle may not be in required 
side or rear yards setbacks. 

(d) Generators shall not be utilized. 

(e) The director’s approval is revocable at any time if the requirements of this section are not 
met. 

(f) The director shall provide a copy of the approval letter to the applicant, property owner (if 
different from the applicant), and all adjoining property owners. 

 

Chapter 18.85 

NONCONFORMANCE, TEMPORARY USES, AND RE-USE OF FACILITIES 

18.85.110 Temporary use permits – Exemptions to permit requirement. 

(1) The following uses shall be exempt from requirements for a temporary use permit when 
located in the DN TC, MC, GC, MHO, CC, NC, or I zones for the time period specified below: 

(a) Uses not to exceed a total of 30 days each calendar year: 

(i) Christmas tree lots; 

(ii) Fireworks stands; and 

(iii) Produce stands. 

(b) Uses not to exceed a total of 14 days each calendar year: 

(i) Amusement rides, carnivals, or circuses; 

(ii) Community festivals; and 

(iii) Parking lot sales. 

 

18.85.120 Temporary use permits – Duration and frequency.  

Temporary use permits shall be limited in duration and frequency as follows: 

(1) The temporary use permit shall be effective for no more than 180 days from the date of the first 
event; 

113 of 119



(2) The temporary use shall not exceed a total of 60 days; provided, that this requirement applies only to 
the days that the event(s) actually take place; 

(3) Temporary use permits for recreational vehicles shall not exceed the duration and frequency as 
outlined in section 18.50.190(4) CMC. 

(3)(4) The temporary use permit shall specify a date upon which the use shall be terminated and 
removed; and 

(4)(5) A temporary use permit shall not be granted for the same temporary use on a property more than 
once per calendar year; provided, that a temporary use permit may be granted for multiple events 
during the approval period. (Ord. 42-02 § 2 (21A.32.120)) 

 

114 of 119



P
U

B
LI

C
 R

O
W

 (
ST

R
EE

T,
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 S
TR

IP
, S

ID
EW

A
LK

) 

7.5’ SETBACK 

7.5’ SETBACK 

7
.5

’ SETB
A

C
K

 

100’ PROPERTY LINE 

BBYKONEN      

Revised 01/20/16  

NOT TO SCALE 

6
0

’ P
R

O
P

ER
TY LIN

E
 

2
0

’ G
A

R
A

G
E 

 S
ET

B
A

C
K

 

D
W

EL
LI

N
G

 

DRIVEWAY 

LESS THAN 6’ FROM DWELLING 

RV 

EXAMPLES OF NON-COMPLIANT RV STORAGE LOCATIONS 

FENCE OR VEGETATION 

SCREEN LESS THAN 6’ IN 

HEIGHT 

R
V

 

RV 

LESS THAN 6’ FROM 

DWELLING 

LESS THAN 3’ FROM 

PROPERTY LINE 

LESS THAN 3’ FROM PROPERTY LINE 

R
V

 

NON-

DRIVEWAY 

FRONT YARD 

AREA OR 

PARALLEL TO 

PUBLIC ROW 

PARKED FULLY 

OR PARTIALLY 

ON PUBLIC 

ROW 

RV 

This is a sample diagram depicting the proposed CMC amendments regard-

ing recreational vehicles. This diagram shall not be adopted as part of the 

CMC and shall not be used to determine compliance with the CMC.  

ATTACHMENT 3

115 of 119



P
U

B
LI

C
 R

O
W

 (
ST

R
EE

T,
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 S
TR

IP
, S

ID
EW

A
LK

) 

7.5’ SETBACK 

7.5’ SETBACK 

7
.5

’ SETB
A

C
K

 

100’ PROPERTY LINE 

BBYKONEN                       

REVISED 01/20/16          

NOT TO SCALE 

6
0

’ P
R

O
P

ER
TY LIN

E
 

2
0

’ G
A

R
A

G
E 

 S
ET

B
A

C
K

 

D
W

EL
LI

N
G

 

DRIVEWAY 

6’ MINIMUM FROM DWELLING 

RV 

EXAMPLES OF COMPLIANT RV STORAGE LOCATIONS 

MINIMUM 6’ SOLID 

BOARD FENCE OR FULL 

VEGETATION SCREEN   

R
V

 

RV 

6’ MINIMUM 

FROM DWELLING 

3’ MINIMUM           

FROM PROPERTY    

LINE 

3’ MINIMUM FROM PROPERTY LINE 

This is a sample diagram depicting the proposed CMC amendments regard-

ing recreational vehicles. This diagram shall not be adopted as part of the 

CMC and shall not be used to determine compliance with the CMC.  116 of 119



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  January 26, 2016 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 9, 2016 
 Special Meeting –Study Session 

 
7:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 9, 2016 

 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

117 of 119



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, February 9, 2016 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Sign Code Amendments (Hart) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 1/20/2016 

 

118 of 119

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, February 9, 2016                                                                                                   City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Study Session is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• King County Presentation on Tri-City Community Van Program (Tricia Barbachan and Anne 
Bruskland – 20 minutes) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  January 12, 2016 Regular Meeting and January 26, 2016 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Tetra Tech Amendment (Vondran) 
C-4. Approve Interlocal Agreement with City of Kent for CIP 1127 (Vondran) 
C-5. Approve Resolution Authorizing Safety Equipment (Beaufrere) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony and Consider Ordinance Extending the Moratorium on Medical 

Marijuana Production and Processing Facilities, Dispensaries, and Collective Gardens for Six 
Months (Hart) 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan Adoption (Feser/Newton) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

Draft 
as of 1/21/2016 

 

119 of 119

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/

	01-26-2016 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	01.12.2016 Special Joint Study Session w-PC
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 01-26-2016 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachments
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet King County Youth Sports Facilities Grant Contract Acceptance
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 KC - YSFG Attachment
	Consent C-4 Green Sheet 01-26-16 DOE Grant Blue Sheet
	Consent C-4 Attachment 1 DOE Grant
	Consent C-5 Green Sheet Blue Sheet_ORD Public Defense Standards_26Jan2016_v2
	Consent C-5 Attachment 1 ORD_Public Defense Standards_26Jan2016
	Consent C-5 Attachment 2 WSBA Standards for Indigent Defense Services (2011)
	Consent C-6 Green Sheet Blue Sheet_Indigent Defense Services_26Jan2016
	Consent C-6 Attachment 1 Proposed_Agreement_Indigent Defense Srvcs_26JAN2016
	Consent C-7 Green Sheet 01-26-16 New Vehicle Blue Sheet_dv
	Consent C-7 Attachment 1 New-Replacement Vehicle Request Form
	Item 1 Blue Sheet on Code Amendments for RV's 01-26-16
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 Ordinance amending regulations for use of RV's 01-26-16
	Item 1 Attachment 2, Exhibit A Ordinance for Use of Recreational Vehicles 012616
	CMC Chapter 8.10 ABATEMENT OF JUNK  NUISANCE VEHICLES AND VEHICLE STORAGE
	8.10.010 Purpose.
	8.10.020 Definitions.
	8.10.030 Certification.
	8.10.040 Exemptions.
	8.10.050 Junk Abatement of nuisance vehicles– Remedy.
	8.10.060 Storage of certain vehicles and components prohibited.
	8.10.070 Exceptions.
	8.10.080 Vehicle storage violation – Penalty.
	8.10.0960 Third party liability.
	Chapter 8.30 NUISANCES
	8.30.030 Nuisances declared.


	Item 1 Attachment 3a-Non-Compliant RV location diagram-012016
	Item 1 Attachment 3b-Compliant RV location diagram-012016
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	02-09-2016 Special Meeting - Study Session Agenda
	Tuesday, February 9, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	02-09-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, February 9, 2016                                                                                                   City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	01-26-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Tuesday, January 26, 2016                                                                                                  City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION
	RECEPTION




